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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sino Splendid Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
annual report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ARER

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2302, 23/F,

New World Tower 1, 18 Queen’s Road Central,

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 309 Ugland House,

South Church Street,

George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall,

Cricket Square, Grand Cayman,

KY1-1102, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai,

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited

10th Floor, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Citibank N.A.
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

STOCK CODE
8006

WEBSITE

www.sinosplendid.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS

HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets forth certain financial information of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the

years indicated:

TR

MBREERERE

TRHEJNARFREMBE LA (G [AR
SEDRARFENE THHER:

Operating results (HK$’000) REXE(THER)
2021 2020
—B=-—-F —ZT-ZF
Revenue ] 63,663 41,150
Loss for the year FANEE (22,130) (23,597)
Financial position (HK$’000) MR (FET)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THE
Equity attributable to owners of ZN/NSIES YN A £
the Company 132,518 154,581
Total assets BEE 154,684 202,950
Net assets FEE 134,547 156,610
Financial statistics B BB
2021 2020
—Es- ZE-TF
Current ratio’ B b 2 7.15 3.21
Total debts to total assets ratio? 4B E T 4B A E 2 0.13 0.23
Return on total assets (%)’ 484 = B ¥R (%) (14.31%) (11.63%)
Return on sales (%) $HE B E (%) (34.76%) (57.34%)
KEY FINANCIAL DATA TEBKER
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
R —ZE-FF ZE-NF ZE-N\F ZT—+LF
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
B BN BN JEN JENY
(Loss)/earnings per share &% (E518)
- basic’ AR — H AR 4.72) (5.58) (0.69) (7.42) (46.62)
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
E T BT BT BT BT
Net assets value BlREEFES
per share® 0.29 0.37 0.46 0.46 0.55
FEERRBREBRLT —E - —FFR 5



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
IR

Notes:

6

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities.

Total debts to total assets ratio is calculated by dividing the total

indebtedness by total assets.

Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the profit for the
year by total assets.

Return on sales is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by
revenue.

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to owners of the Company for the year by weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing the net assets
by weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year. Net assets represent total assets less total liabilities.
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DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of the
Company, | hereby present the Group’s results for 2021 to our
shareholders.

Under the COVID-19 pandemic, protracted social distancing
restrictions and cautious Hong Kong and Singapore media
business posted constant challenges to our business.
Nevertheless, we have strengthened our operational capabilities
and overall competitiveness throughout the years for customer
retention either in Hong Kong or Singapore. During the year,
we grasped the opportunities in media services in Hong Kong
and achieved a good performance. We believe the demand of
the media business will stay strong in long term and our group
is well positioned to capitalize the opportunity. Meanwhile, we
devoted substantial effort in integrating sustainability practices
into our daily operations to create value for our stakeholders.

Despite these turbulent times, we strive to continuously adapt
and transform ourselves to the new norm under the COVID-19
pandemic. It has toughened our people to manage and overcome
the challenges which have brought about a new set of challenges
extensively. We are confident that we will be able to weather
through this storm with resilience and determination.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to extend sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, customers, suppliers and business
partners for their continuing support, and also to members of
the Board, the management, and employees who have been
dedicating to the development of the Group, for their invaluable
contributions.

Mr. Wang Tao
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group are
principally engaged in (i) travel media operations with provision
of advertising services through the internet and travel magazines,
event organizing services and magazine publication (“Travel
Media Business”) (ii) provision of contents and advertising
services in multiple well known financial magazines distributed
in The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and provision of
advertising services through the internet and others media
channels (“Financial Magazine And Other Media Business”); (iii)
investment in securities (“Securities Investment”); (iv) money
lending (“Money Lending Business”); and (v) virtual reality
business (“Virtual Reality Business”).

The Group’s total revenue increased by HK$22.5 million or
54.6%, from HK$41.2 million last year to HK$63.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 primarily due to the revenue
increase from Financial Magazine and Other Media Business.

Gross profit of the Group was HK$27.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, representing an increase of HK$6.2
million or 29.5% as compared with HK$21 million in 2020.
Gross profit margin for the year reached approximately 42.7%
(2020: 51.0%), representing a decrease of 8.3% over the last
year.

The Group recorded other income, gains and losses in the net
gain amount of HK$4.7 million during the year, compared with
HK$10.0 million net gain in the corresponding period of 2020,
which was mainly due to an increase in loss on held for trading
investments in 2021 and decrease of dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss by HK$6.1
million or 81.3% from HK$7.5 million last year to HK$1.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The impairment approach in HKFRS 9 is based on expectations
as opposed to incurred losses under the predecessor accounting
standard. This means it is not necessary for a loss event to occur
before credit losses are recognised. Instead, a loss allowance
is recognised for expected credit losses and is remeasured at
each reporting date for changes in those expected credit losses.
HKFRS 9 is purposefully designed to be forward looking and
reflect expectations of future credit events impacting loans and
receivables on the statement of financial position. It is important
when determining what ‘forward looking’ information should
be used as it must reflect the forward-looking information that
existed at the reporting date.

8 Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

At the reporting date, the COVID-19 pandemic was affecting all
major economic and financial markets, resulting in many sectors
facing challenges associated with the economic conditions. As
the pandemic evolved, the management expected all entities to
experience conditions often associated with a general economic
downturn, including, but not limited to, financial market
volatility and erosion, deteriorating credit, liquidity concerns,
further increases in government intervention, increasing
unemployment, broad declines in consumer discretionary
spending, increasing inventory levels, reductions in production
because of decreased demand, layoffs and other restructuring
activities. Contingent on the continuation of these circumstances
a potential broader economic downturn could result with a
prolonged negative impact on the Group’s financial results.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
management had from time to time during the financial period,
communicated with the debtors about their financial condition.

Based on the Group’s understanding from the foregoing
communication and the results of its review on their respective
financial information and after taking into account their
repayment history and certain forward-looking factors specific
to each of them, especially on the effect on the COVID-19, the
Group recorded the reversal of impairment loss under expected
credit loss model, net of approximately HK$5.7 million (2020:
HK$20.7 million). Loss on impairment of financial assets mainly
included loss on impairment on the accounts receivables
in the sum of HK$6.9 million (2020: HK$19.5 million). The
Group made full provision for impairment losses on accounts
receivable when the borrowers with overdue payments for more
than 12 months. The Directors considered that the amount of the
impairment loss was fair and reasonable.

The selling and distribution costs increased by HK$3.4 million
to HK$6.8 million during the year (2020: HK$3.4 million),
representing an increased of 100% against the year of 2020. The
administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$16.9
million to approximately HK$52.4 million during the year (2020:
HK$35.5 million) representing an increased of 47.6% against the
year of 2020.

As a result, the loss attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$22.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 as
compared with a loss of HK$23.6 million in 2020.

During the current year, the Group recognised government
grants of approximately HK$7.6 million (2020: HK$4.5 million)
in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Industry Review

Market Overview

According to World Travel & Tourism Council (WTTC), the effect
of COVID-19 pandemic has emphasised the importance and
contribution of Travel & Tourism to the world economy. The
ongoing restrictions to international travel has resulted in almost
USD4.7 trillion losses in 2020 for the travel sector. Domestic
visitor spending decreased by 45%, whilst international visitor
spending fell by an unprecedented 69.4%.

In 2020, 62 million jobs were lost, leaving just 272 million
employed across the travel sector glob-ally. This affected the
entire Travel & Tourism ecosystem, with small and medium sized
enter-prises (SMEs) being particularly affected. Earlier research
indicated that if international travel resumed by June 2021, the
62 million jobs lost in 2020 could return before the end of 2022.
However with international travel resumption nowhere in sight,
the trend continued in 2021 with millions of Travel & Tourism
jobs in the balance.

As the Travel and Tourism sector represents over 10 percent
of global GDP, the recovery of the sector is more crucial
than ever to world economy, and is very much dependant
on an international coordinated response to the resumption
of international travel. With recovery hampered by the lack
of international coordination, travel restrictions and slower
vaccination rates, the situation has prevented the Travel &
Tourism sector to once again support the millions of livelihoods
affected by the pandemic.

As a result, the event organizing services of the Group for the
year was significantly impacted as it is very much dependant on
clients from the travel sector.

Publishing
The publication of TTG e-Daily online newsletter and travel and

financial magazine maintains a strong presence in the market
place. Advertisement slots in our publications have been offered
primarily as e-Ads on our digital platforms which partly explains
the higher YOY revenue from digital/online platforms.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's revenue mainly coming from print publications and
online and digital platforms. During the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group discovered that more advertisers are shifting focus
towards online and digital advertising the Group timely grasped
the opportunities in media services during the year.

Outlook for 2022

The surge in COVID-19 cases towards the end of 2021 caused
by the Omicron variant has continued to affect the market
negatively in the short-term. However, medical reports indicate
and suggest that the Omicron variant causes less severe illness
than the earlier COVID-19 variants. In light of this, ground
sentiment appears to be hopeful but recovery is still very much
dependent on policies of individual countries.

The Greater China region, for example, has tightly controlled
its borders in accordance with their zero COVID-19 case
tolerance policy. This is unlike several other countries which
have moved to-wards accepting and treating the virus as an
endemic and therefore more open to allowing inter-national
travel and tourism. For countries in the Asia-Pacific region whose
GDP is significantly reliant on tourism receipts, the economic
toll and internal demands are likely to prompt further easing of
travel restrictions in the long term, as governments look towards
sustainable economic recovery.

Regionally, recent retightening of borders due to the Omicron
variant is likely to ease when the situation stabilises, especially
in light of the aforementioned internal economic pressures
within various countries. National Tourism Organisations (NTOs)
from countries such as Malaysia, the Philippines, Thailand,
and Singapore, among others, appear to be moving forward
with promotional and marketing activities as travel resumption
becomes imminent. The Group will leverage on this optimism
and continue to push for revenue, with particular focus on the
digital space in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

Travel Media Business

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Travel Media
Business recorded a revenue of HK$15 million, decreased by
32.4% or HK$7.2 million as compared with that of HK$22.2
million in 2020. This amount represented 23.5% of the Group’s
total revenue for the year under review.

The business recorded a segment gain of HK$2.5 million this
year, representing an increase of HK$6.5 million with that a
segment loss of HK$4 million in last year. The increase was
mainly due to the government grant of approximately HK$7.6
million.

Financial Magazine And Other Media Business

During the year, the Group engaged in provision of contents
and advertising services through travel and financial magazine,
internet and other media channels. The Group timely grasped the
opportunity in advertising on digital platform and other media
channels.

Revenue from this business was HK$45.8 million, which
contributed 71.9% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
under review. Segmental gain of this business during the year
amounted to HK$ 7.3 million.

Securities Investment

As at 31 December 2021, total market value for the held for
trading investments of the Group was approximately HK$26.5
million and recorded fair value gain of approximately HK$4.4
million. During the current years, the Group realised a gain
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$4.05 million (2020: HK$0.08 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

Details of the top three held for trading investments, in terms of
market value as at 31 December 2021, are as follows:

BEBFNWN DA

FEEERE
R-ZE-—G+-A=+—0 HEKS
MZRBEEEREZFENT

For the year ended
31 December 2021
HE-®BC--F
TZA=t-RLHFE
Market Proportion  Gain/(loss) on
value as at to the total fair value
31 December assets of  changes of the Dividend
Company name Stock Code 2021 the Group investments received
R ZERE
—B--f MRERD
t=R=+-B HEXREEE 2/
NEEH gk 2Tl REZLE (B1]) 5143}
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Goer Tek Inc 002241.5Z 9,941 6.43% 2,359 -
TERGERAF
Guangzhou Automobile Group Co. Ltd 601238.SH 5,189 3.36% (879) -
BEMAEEERNERAF
Avic Aviation High-Technology Co., Ltd 600862.SH 1,797 1.16% (95) -
R ESRRRABRAF
Others 9,673 6.25% 3,015 -
Hity
26,600 17.2% 4,400 =

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

During the year, the Group conducts its money lending business.
The Group’s clientele primarily consists of niche customers
including corporations and individuals. Most of the clients were
acquired through business referrals and introductions from the
Company’s directors, senior management, business partners or
clients. Besides in compliance with all rules and regulations
imposed under the MLO, the Group has also formulated internal
money lending policy to guide the money lending operations.
The loan terms would be arrived at after considering a
combination of factors including prevalent market interest rates,
the financial strength of the borrower, the collaterals offered as
past credit history of the borrower with the Group and adjusted,
if necessary, by arms-length negotiations with the borrower.

RESRRE R AR

BEX®
AEERFARRBRERS ASENT
PRHIBHIELERBAATPEK K
BAOBPEBARAER SREEE-
EBBHABEPONERENRIBES-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

Revenue from this business was HK$1.1 million, which
accounted for 1.7% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.
A total principal amount and accrued interest of approximately
HK$8.9 million remain outstanding. The Group retained
an independent professional valuer to conduct impairment
assessment on the outstanding loans in view of the deteriorated
financial status of certain borrowers during the year. The Group
will closely monitor to the status of the receivables, keep
updated the status of the borrower and take relevant actions
including but not limited to communicate to the borrowers and
take reference to their explanation for the failure of repayment,
their updated financial status, their steps to correct their
problems and new schedule for repayment etc.

VIRTUAL REALITY BUSINESS

The Group entered into virtual reality business in January 2020.
The Group currently applied virtual reality technology in games
and may apply the technology in other areas later. Revenue from
this business was approximately HK$1.8 million for the year,
which accounted for approximately 2.8% of the Group's total
revenue for the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

No material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures in the course of the year.

PROSPECT

Looking back at the Sino-US trade disputes over the past year,
even though China and the US had signed the phase one trade
agreement, the outlook for international trade is still clouded by
remaining uncertainties. Coupled with the plight brought about
by the outbreak of COVID-19 across the world in 2021, the
global economy and consumer sentiment has been affected, and
the operating environment will remain difficult.

In view of the uncertainty as to when the COVID-19 pandemic
might come to an end, the business environment in the first
half of 2022 will continue to remain challenging for the
Group. Above all, while the various countries and the global
population is actively fighting against the COVID-19 epidemic,
it is uncertain how it will impact the global economy in the
near future. In response, the Group will continue to sharpen its
strategies and monitor the external environment and internal
resources carefully to meet the Group’s business development.

Our travel media business has been affected seriously and the
operating environment will remain difficult. We will remain
highly alert about the impact of the epidemic on our operations
and take any necessary measures to mitigate the impact.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We will actively expand the customer base and will explore
business opportunities in the area of the financial magazine and
other media business and seek the better opportunities in other
industry with potential in particular.

The Directors endeavor to seek more business opportunities
in the financial industry as well as other industries to diversify
the Group's existing business stream to enhance the long-term
benefits of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and financial resources

The Group generally financed its operations with its internally
generated cash flows. The Group’s total equity was HK$134.5
million as at 31 December 2021, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$22.1 million as compared with that
of HK$156.6 million as at 31 December 2021. Total assets
amounted to HK$154.7 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$203 million), of which HK$37.2 million (2020: HK$52.1
million) as bank balances and cash, HK$4.3 million (2020:
HK$47.5 million) was equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, HK$26.6 million (2020: HK$20.0 million) was
held for trading investments.

Capital structure

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s consolidated net assets
was HK$134.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$22.1 million as compared with that of HK$156.6 million in
2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has 478,413,723
shares of HK$0.01 each in issue. The value of share capital was
approximately HK$4.8 million as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: approximately HK$4.6 million).

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, in order to support
the development of the Group’s media business, the Group has
engaged in certain fund raising activities, details of which are set
out as follows:

Issue of corporate bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company entered
into subscription agreement with an independent investors
pursuant to which the investors have agreed to subscribe and
the Company has agreed to issue the corporate bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$6 million at par value,
bearing interest rates of 6% per annum and maturity date is 1
year from the date of issue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

At the end of the reporting period, the corporate bonds payable
with the principal amount of HK$6 million (2020: Nil) remained
outstanding. The net proceeds from the corporate bonds, after
deducting the other related expenses payable by the Company,
were approximately HK$5.95 million. The actual use of proceeds
is approximately HK$5.95 million for general working capital,
such as staff salaries, marketing expenses and others operation
cost. As at the date of the report, the proceeds were fully utilized
as intended.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The 2017 Placing

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
22 November 2017, 24 November 2017 and 13 December
2017 (collectively the “2017 Placing Announcements”). As
disclosed in the 2017 Placing Announcements, the net proceeds
of the 2017 Placing (after deduction of fees, commissions and
expenses) amounted to approximately HK$12.51 million (the
“2017 Net Proceeds”). The Board would like to provide further
information pursuant to Rule 18.32A and Rule 18.32(8) of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) in
relation to the use of the 2017 Net Proceeds as follows:

Planned use of

RBEHE A KN4 556,000,000 T
TR E)ENRBESFDKRE
B-RABEHFMEREFE (KHBRARQ
AN 2 EMBEBEFT) % A5,950,000%8
JC ° FT1S 578 495,950,000/ 7L BB A 1E—
REEES WEITHS LHMAIRE
HEBEBKR AN RAREBE FIERIEL
RBRTREREHFA-

FBRERE
—E—tEREEHE
ZRAMARANRBHAE-_ZTE—+F+— A
—+=-H - ZE—+tF+—A=-tHmHBEX
T+ F+ A+ =ZAZAE (B =
E—tFRERE]) BUW_T—LFE
ERNEMEE — S —tFREFHE M
SREFE (KR ER A RkAXE)
#412,510,0008 T ([ ZE—tEFMBEN
EFRE]) EFETEMNRBREEEBREARS
FIER AR GEMFES LM A ([GEM £
MR AN ) F18.32A 1K K% 5518.32(8) IR
ER T tEMERBEFEARNE—
FSERINT

Unutilised
balance as at

Actual utilised
amount up to

Expected
timeline for

2017 Net 31 December 31 December unutilised 2017
Proceeds 2020 2020 Net Proceeds
ZB-tF
ZE-tE HECRCRE NCBCRE RBNERE
FigRE%EEe t-A=+-8 +T=B=t-B *BALEZ
THAE BERCBHASE 2ABREH RAEER
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
%  (approximately)  (approximately) ~ (approximately)
BEET BEET BEET
(#4) (##) (##)
For general working capital: RfE-REEES:
Salaries expenses, including HeRX (BREEM
directors’ emoluments and EREMBINE)
other staff costs 40.0 5.0 5.0 - -
Rental expenses for EENZRERAX
Hong Kong premises 12.0 1.5 1.5 - -
Legal and professional fee and FRREZERIR
other administrative expenses EfhTHRAX 40.0 5.0 5.0 s s
Other possible investment EthEERE End of 2022
8.0 1.01 - 101 —EZZFX
100.0 12.51 11.5 1.01
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The 2017 Net Proceeds were used and are proposed to be used
according to the intentions as disclosed in the 2017 Placing
Announcements. The expected timeline for using the unutilised
amount of the 2017 Net Proceeds is based on the best estimation
of the business market situations made by the Board. It might
be subject to changes based on the market conditions. Further
announcement(s) in respect of change in timeline, if any, will
be made by the Company in accordance with the requirements
of the GEM Listing Rules as and when appropriate to update its
Shareholders and potential investors.

The 2020 Placing

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 12 June 2020 and 10 July 2020 (collectively the “2020
Placing Announcements”). As disclosed in the 2020 Placing
Announcements, the net proceeds of the 2020 Placing amounted
to approximately HK$5.1 million (the “2020 Net Proceeds”). The
Board would like to provide further information pursuant to Rule
18.32A and Rule 18.32(8) of the GEM Listing Rules in relation to
the use of the 2020 Net Proceeds as follows:

ARESEERTREY
EEYE

For development and operation of
the virtual reality business
of the Group

BEBFNWN DA

—tFMBREBEFEIRE-_S—+
Eﬁ%“¢%&%2?ﬁﬁﬁ #5458 IR R
BERETFUESRE — T —+FAEHRE
@ﬁ*@% >R ARERIDER

EHEEMSBEREN 2 &EMET

%Q@ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ“@ ZIN/NETE <5
BGIM ETMBA AT ERSEERE
B (B EHE—H DS  URAKREEE
E&é%ﬁfrﬁﬁﬂ

T _EFHREEHE
BRAARNARBHPE-_ZE_TF A+
AR—ZE-_FEFLA+HZRAE (BB =
TEERERE]) BUW T FR

EREMBEHR S _TFRESFEMS
RIBHRE A A5,100,0008 T ([T E-F
FAREREFE]) - EEEEHBIEGEM
ETRAIE18.32A KX 5F18.32(8) IKIR
ER S _SFMEFRBIFEARNE—
FERWET

Actual utilized
amount up to
2020 Net 31 December

Proceeds 2021
“ECEF HECERC--F
FEREFEZ t-A=1+-AH
iERAE BERCBALH

HK$ million HK$ million

%  (approximately)  (approximately)
BEET AEAT

(#4) (#54)

Planned use of

100 5.1 5.1

Note: As at the date of this annual report, the 2020 Net Proceeds have

been fully utilized.

The 2020 Net Proceeds were used according to the intentions as
disclosed in the 2020 Placing Announcements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2021, the P-Funds consisted of the Group’s
investment in two P-Funds, namely Zhongtai Stable Growth
Equity Fund SP with a fair value of HK$1,570,000 and Whiz
Asia Evolution Fund Investment Limited Partnership (the “Whiz

BEAERE

R-_E-_—F+_A=Z=+—HB ALEBEE
PEEAEERMELEESHNERE.
Bl A7 {E A1,570,0008 T P B @
EEREMES NANAES2,675,000

Partnership”) with a fair value of HK$2,675,000.

Name of the P-Fund
REESEE

General partner/man-ager

EEERBARE

Principal businesses of underlying
investment companies

MBREQARAZEERK

Percentage of interest in the P-Fund held
by the Group as at 31 December 2021

R-B-—%+=B=+-BXRESH
FRlEEScEEE L

Contribution paid by the Group
AEEEHHER

The fair value of under-lying investments of
the P-Fund as at 31 December 2021

ZABESCZHBREN -_Z=—F
tT=ZA=+—-BZARE
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& JLH) Whiz Asia Evolution Fund
Investment Limited Partnership ([Whiz
Partnership ] ) ©

Whiz Partnership
Whiz Partnership

Whiz Partners Inc.
Whiz Partners Inc.

The P-Fund supports business development activities of portfolio
companies of Whiz Asia Evolution Fund which targets Japanese
companies with world class proprietary technology and
processes with the potential for overseas expansion. As at 31
December 2021, the investments portfolio of Whiz Partnership
were entities listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange which
accounted for approximately 100% of its net assets value.
ZAEHE S Whiz Asia Evolution Fund i N & A4S A A]
Z %75 % E - Whiz Asia Evolution Fund B )X K5 B H R — 7
EERMETIZY ABEIINBERENNAARRAR -R_F——
F+=HA=+—8 " Whiz Partnership 2% EHE BN ERZE
HFRBMETMER (EEEEFENI00% °

Approximately 4.1%

A94.1%

JPY476,362,500 (equivalent to approximately HK$32.4
million)

476,362,500 [E (8 & 5 4932,400,000/7T)

Approximately HK$2,675,000, representing approximately

1.73% of the total assets of the Group
#32,675,000/8 7T A AR BREELNT.73%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investment income for the year ended Nil
31 December 2021

BE_FT-_-F+-A=t—-HLEFEZ #
BERA

Dividends received from the P-Fund Nil
for the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-ZE-_—F+t-RA=+—-HBLFE i
BREESWRZRE

Unrealised loss for the year ended
31 December 2021
BE_Z-_-F+t-A=1+—-HLEEZ
ABHRER

The Group adopted a passive investment strategy for the
investments in the Whiz Partnership since it made contribution
to the P-Fund according to the Limited Partnership Agreement.

Charges on the Group’s assets

There was no charges on the Group's assets as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.

Borrowings

The Group has no borrowings for financial institutions as at 31
December 2021 and 2020. Details of corporate bonds payable
by the Group is set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group's total bank balances and cash amounted
to HK$37.2 million as at 31 December 2021, which decreased
by HK$14.9 million as compared with that of HK$52.1 million
as at 31 December 2020.

The gearing ratio (net debts divided by shareholders’ equity) was
approximately 4% as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

IMPAIRMENT ON GOODWILL ALLOCATED TO
TRAVEL MEDIA BUSINESS

For the goodwill which has been allocated to Travel Media
Business and included in reserves as the acquisition of operation
were made prior to 1 January 2005.

In accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
No. 36 — Impairment of Assets, the Company performed
impairment test on the goodwill that have impairment indication
by the year ended of 2020.

RESRRE R AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

Being the Travel Media Business recorded a decrease of revenue
by approximately 71.1% to approximately HK$22.2 million for
the year ended of 2020 from approximately HK$76.8 million
for the year ended of 2019. Indeed, COVID-19 pandemic was
not going away any time soon and with the expected prolonged
tough time ahead, the Company implemented further cost
cutting measures to conserve cash flow as well as introduce non-
traditional and new sources of revenue. Accordingly, impairment
on goodwill allocated to Travel Media Business of approximately
HK$31.2 million (2019: HK$ Nil) was recognised during the
year ended of 2020.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and any
related hedges

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Singapore dollars and Hong
Kong dollars. During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, the Group had not entered into any hedging arrangements.
However, the management will continue to monitor closely its
foreign currency exposure and requirements and to arrange for
hedging facilities when necessary.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Employee information

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 45 (2020: 47) full time
employees, of which 7 (2020: 6) were based in Hong Kong, 7
(2020: 7) in China, 30 (2020: 33) in Singapore, and 1 (2020:
1) in Malaysia. The Group’s employees are remunerated largely
based on their performance and experience, alongside with
the current industry practices. The Group has introduced share
option scheme to recognize the contributions of the employees
to the growth of the Group. The scheme has been or will be
amended from time to time to take into account changes in
market conditions and the GEM Listing Rules. Remuneration
packages of employees include salaries, insurance, medical
cover, mandatory provident fund, discretionary bonuses and
share option (if any).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENGREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wang Tao

Mr. Wang, aged 64, was graduated from the Hebei University
with a bachelor’s degree of Engineering in 1982. He has
accumulated more than 20 years of experience in investment
and construction management. Mr. Wang was the deputy general
managers of a private real estate development company located
in Beijing since 2004. Mr. Wang was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 29 September 2015.

Yang Xingan

Mr. Yang, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in January 2015. He graduated from the Wuhan
University of Science and Technology, majoring in industrial
and civil architecture. He is a registered constructor in the
People’s Republic of China, a senior engineer and a member
of the Architectural Society of China. Mr. Yang has over 20
years of management experience in construction and real estate
development. He joined Hubei State-owned Huanggai Hu
Property Development Company (1L & Bl & & & B EE E
Fl# T2 /2 A]) as a technician in July 1993 and was holding the
position as a general manager by the time he left in February
2001. Between March 2001 and July 2005, Mr. Yang was the
project manager of Archibal Decoration Co., Ltd. (F I 717 F 5
#hak st T2 AR A F]) . From August 2005 to February 2009, he
joined Shenzhen Yingfeng Decoration Engineering Co., Limited
(RYIMmABEMTIEBRAR])as a partner. Since March
2009, Mr. Yang has been the Legal Representative and Chairman
of Jiangsu Anxin Digital Property Co., Limited (L& & L8 F
EXERRAA]).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Yang Shuyan

Ms. Yang, aged 42, is a certified public accountant in the
People’s Republic of China. She graduated from the South
China University of Technology with a dual bachelor’s degree
in E-commerce and Technical English. She has over ten years of
working experience in auditing and finance. She had worked in
KPMG. She has served as the financial controller of a project
investment company in Shenzhen since October 2015. Ms. Yang
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director and
chairlady of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 29 May 2015.

Wang Qingling

Ms. Wang, aged 37, she has over 10 years of experience in
administration and management and has rich knowledge in
merchandising. Ms. Wang was appointed as Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee on 28 December 2018.

Lee Yim Wah

Ms. Lee, aged 49, she has over 20 years of experience in the
trading industry and has rich knowledge in sales and marketing.
Ms. Lee was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 31 March 2076.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Darren Ng Hung Meng

Mr. Ng, aged 66, is the Managing Director of TTG Asia Media
Pte Ltd. He is a veteran in the travel and tourism industry
and has a wealth of experience of more than 30 years in the
business. Having joined the company (formerly known as Asian
Business Press and Miller Freeman Pte Ltd) since 1984, he
is credited with successfully growing TTG regionally. Under
Darren’s leadership, TTG achieved consistent organic growth,
establishing profitable portfolios in event management, tourism
and travel trade publishing. His accomplishments also include
expanding TTG's geographic presence across Asia.

Mr. Ng has also been at the helm of multitude of incumbent
committees and associations in the travel and tourism industry
as council and advisory member. He is the current Chairman
of PATA Singapore Chapter (since 2008) and is presently an
Industry Council Member of Pacific Asia Travel Association, the
Appointed Conference Ambassador to Shanghai City (from 2009
to 2014) and previously a Member of the Asia Pacific Advisory
Council to Meeting Professionals International (MPI). He also
served as the President of Skal International Singapore from
2001 to 2003.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in travel media operations with
provision of advertising services through the internet and travel
magazines, event organizing services and magazine publication;
provision of contents and advertising services in multiple well-
known financial magazine distributed in the PRC and provision
of advertising services through the internet and others media
channels; investment in securities and money lending. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 is set out in “Director’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

Environmental Policies

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of
business operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a
balance between the quality and efficiency of our services and
the minimization of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental
degradation. Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive
approach to effect internal and external communications by
means of telephone, emails and conferences or such other
communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Also, the Group are able to minimize physical travelling
and printing.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance
with such requirements. The Company is not aware of any non-
compliance in any material respect with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Relationship with Employees

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets
and the stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and
support are of values at all times. The Group regularly reviews
compensation and benefit policies accordingly to industry
benchmark as well as the individual performance of employees.
Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident fund and share
options (if any) are provided to retain loyal employees aiming at
forming a professional staff and management team that can bring
the Group to a higher level of success.

Relationships with Customers and Suppliers

The Directors believe that maintaining a good relationship with
customers is one of the critical reasons for the Group’s success.
Our business model is to maintain and build up on our strong
relationship with our client base. Our mission is to provide the
finest services to our customers and the Group is constantly
looking ways to improve customer relation through enhanced
services. Also, the Group has maintained good relationship with
the suppliers to ensure their continued support to the Group in
the foreseeable future.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year are set out in “Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income” of
this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out in “Financial
Summary” of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. Use of proceeds from the placing of 64,300,000
Company’s shares in 2017 and the placing of 77,160,000
Company’s shares in 2020, are set out in “FINANCIAL REVIEW”
section under “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

Details of movements during the year in the share options are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements and
“SHARE OPTION SCHEME” section contained in this directors’
report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s by-law, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” and in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to Nil (2020: HK$23,060,000).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy pursuant to which
the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration
of final dividend will be subject to the approval of the
shareholders. In proposing any dividend payout, the Board
shall also take into account, inter alia, the Group’s operations,
earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and availability,
capital expenditure and future development requirements and
other factors it may deem relevant at such time. Any payment of
the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the articles of association of the Company and all
applicable laws and regulations.

The dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time and
there is no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any specific periods.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” in this directors’ report and note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021 or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to approximately HK$Nil (2020: HK$5,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, sales attributable to the
Group’s largest customer accounted for 24% of the Group’s
total sales and aggregate sales attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 52% of the Group’s total
sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier accounted for 39% of the Group’s
total purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 51% of the Group's
total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, nor
their close associates, nor any shareholder owning more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital had any interests in any of
the five largest customers or suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, except for those disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had no transactions
with its related parties.

The Directors conducted review of the related party transactions
of the Group during the year and were not aware of any
transactions requiring disclosure of connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the GEM
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Chow Chi Wa (Chief Executive Officer,
resigned with effect on 19 November 2021)

Yang Xingan

Wang Tao

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yang Shuyan

Wang Qingling

Lee Yim Wah
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

In accordance with article 85 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), Mr. Yang Xingan and Ms. Yang Shuyan
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 2 years.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders” approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are reviewed and
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities, performance
and the results of the Group.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out in “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”) an annual confirmation
of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the INEDs are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law and subject to the relevant
provisions therein, the Directors, company secretary and other
officers shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they may
incur by execution of their duties in their respective offices or
otherwise in relation thereto.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board is not
aware of any business or interest of each director and the
respective close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) of each that competes or may compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in which
a Director or a connected entity of that Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting during or at the
end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors nor chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors of
the Company as set out in rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

28 Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

TR R YT B IR 3L

IR A 4R8I B SRR A8 B ST PTAR IR -
EF ARARERHEMBRTHABER
BEZBENITHBE N TR R
MMZMARNR BA W BX BE
BB AR R B E RO S
TIERR B U AMEE -

B
RBE-T-_—F+-_A=1T—HULFE"
EZeUMNBEMEZTRFEEEAZE
BMEAL(EERGEM EWRADRE
MEREBERBEBURATEBRHEFZE
BHEE EMER &ﬁ?ﬁ/\iéﬁijoﬁﬁéﬁi
REE B A H i F &R

EEREAXRE RHETEHNH
Z R

BMERFAXNFERDATE BAXARF
EXNEFTWEERNETERSHER

BEABRBLZIERR S RHHAEH -

EEBAROGNEZH

2R B S E A 0] B B 1 BB AN B AR AT B
B ET M ZE BEEFAEBA
RN B AR AT ELAE A B 88 B9 A 1 2 2

EERBETHRAEBRAQAR
HEBZE2RG HEROK
EEIFZEERAR

RZZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H AQA&E
ERRBITERAEMER AR A KETW
HEEE (TEREHFRBEGN ([FFH
MEAEEM ) EXVE) 2 B - BERH
HEREEPREELENBEES LY f‘fﬂm
BIE3SHEBE T HEE 2 BB TR
FAR BB REGEM LT BIE5.46
Z=5.671& ﬁﬁ%%ﬂx T%%Lﬁ;‘a’i;ﬁﬁ%ﬁm
ZEBENME AR i <2 BT B (T ] M 25 Bk

/J\)E' °©

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, those persons (other than Directors
and chief executive of the Company) who had interests and
short positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

Name Number of shares
mE/ A8 ignig 4=
Niu Chengjun (Note 1) 89,344,737
FR& (BaET)

Note: (1) The relevant percentage is calculated by reference to the

shares in issue on 31 December 2021, i.e. 478,413,723
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person
(other than Directors and chief executive of the Company) had
notified the Company any interests or short positions in shares
or underlying shares of the Company which was recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013 Share
Option Scheme”) on 31 December 2013, which was approved
by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on the same date. The 2013 Share Option
Scheme will expire on 31 December 2023.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant share options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth of the
Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible means to
reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the
eligible participants.

According to the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the Board may
grant share options to eligible participants including employees,
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, consultant, adviser,
agent, contractor, customer and supplier of any member of the
Group and the Board has sole discretion to consider eligibility for
the 2013 Share Option Scheme on the basis of their contribution
to the development and growth of the Group.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company, is 38,582,092 shares which represents 10% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report,
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
on the date of approval and adoption of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme provided that the Company may at any time seek
approval from shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders
in general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Share options
previously granted under any share option schemes of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with such schemes or exercised) will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue as at the date of grant unless such grant has been
duly approved by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders in
general meeting at which the relevant eligible participant and
his associates were abstained from voting. Share options granted
to substantial shareholders or INEDs or any of their respective
associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s issued share capital on the date of grant and with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance
by the shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 7 days from the date
of the offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Board. There is no general
requirement on the minimum period for which option must be
held before it can be exercised. All options must be exercised
within 10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price is determined by the Board and will not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.
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The table below shows the details of the outstanding share T&RIITAR-_T-Z—F+-_HA=+—

options granted to all grantees under the Scheme as at 31
December 2021.

respectively. For further details on the movement of the options

For further information please refer to the ZHBRENFIE-FHEE—FTEHR
Company’s announcement dated 15 May 2020 and 9 April 2021 HARRIBHS AT -_TFHA+H

BR

Rt B AE AR AT KL M EARITE

N
B2

AN—ZE-—FOANENRE - RRE

during the reporting period, please see below. HE FEBREEYH ZE—FTHBUOT -
Number of ~ Number of
shares options  Outstanding
Closing price Underlying  exercised share options
Immediately Number of share  during the as at
Name or category of Exercise price  before the options options  reporting 31 December
grantee Date of grant per share date of grant Vesting date Exercisable period granted granted period 2021
R
ZBI-F
t=A
DRILE RHEEHE  =1-A
RRAZER BREHAHAZ BRE REZER  EARz  HATE
HER RiAH BRTRE W E BEAM TEHHE BREHE RHOHE BREZE BRE
(HKS) (HKS) (%)
(#7) (#7) (%)
Directors
£
Mr. Chow Chi Wa* 15 May 2020 0.0866 0.077 None 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2022 3,858,200 - (3,858,200) -
RASELE —3-%F & TRCRERATHERE
EATEA “Z--5RA+EA
Mr. Wang Tao 15 May 2020 0.0866 0.077 None 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2022 3,858,200 - - 3,858,200
IREE k- Sk 3:2 £ “E-EFRATARE
BATHA “RCCFRATRA
Mr. Yang Xingan 15 May 2020 0.0866 0.077 None 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2022 3,858,200 - (3,858,200) -
BAREE it Sk 25 E Z_ZERATHAZE
EATHA ZFICFRATERA
Other employees
AfER
4 employees 15 May 2020 0.0866 0.077 None 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2022 15,432,800 - - 15,432,800
448 it Sk 25 E “Z-2FRATHAE
EATEA “E--fRAtHmA
10 employees 9 April 2021 0.082 0.082 None 9 Aprll 2021 to 8 April 2023 38,582,000 - (7,716,400 30,865,600
105E8 “Z--%@ANA £ “E-FMANRE
—F-=FEANR
Total 65,589,400 - (15,432,800 50,156,600
&t
*  Mr. Chow Chi Wa resigned as a director on 19 November 2021. * BEESERFEZ—FF+—AF+NAEF
FEFB -
PEERRBERARLT T —FFHR 31
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees (including directors). Equity-settled share based
payments are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of
non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date
of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straighted-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

During the period ended 31 December 2021, share options were
granted by the Company to its directors and employees, details
of which are as follows:

RO RZ

AEERETEE (BEREF)FLHBRA
BEARDBER Z AR RABEARK
D RERZMFRE L B RRBATARN
RAECGEMERBHRMOZERING
B -RIRABEEURD SER 2 AHE D
FHEBEENAARE NREASEH KK
755 B 2 B fn 2 fhat N R B M A B 40
X A TMISRBIRTOEEELR

%o

HE—_ZE-—F+-_A=+—HILEE"
KARIMESREERTDERE FBW
T

Exercise Fair value
Number of price per per option
share options Date of grant Exercise period share at grant date
BHERE
Rim BR REE R
BREHE R AM TS TEE DAE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors 3,858,200 15/05/2020 15/05/2020 to 0.087 0.03009
14/05/2022
B “EIEF "R ZFRATHAE
hATHA “F--FRATHEA
Employees 15,432,800 15/05/2020 15/05/2020 to 0.087 0.03071
14/05/2022
E& “EIEF "R ZFRATHAE
hATHA “F--FRATHEA
30,865,600 19/04/2021 09/04/2021 to 08/04/2023 0.082 0.0331
“EZF “E--FNANRE
MANLE “Z-=FWANR

In accordance with the terms of the Scheme, the options granted
vested at the date of grant.

The fair value of the share options was estimated to be
HK$1,277,064, which was determined using the binomial
option pricing model. Where relevant, the expected life used
in the model has been adjusted based on management’s best
estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
(including the probability of meeting market conditions attached
to the option), and behavioural considerations. Expected
volatility is based on the historical share price volatility over the
past one year. The variances and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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Inputs into the model B AE
Share options
granted on
9 April 2021
R-F——
mANH
B
BB e
Grant date share price HK$0.082
B A HRE 0.0828 7T
Exercise price HK$0.082
1TEE 0.082/& 7T
Expected volatility 101.79%
8 B R b
Expected life 2 years
BHIFR 2%
Expected dividend yield -
TR EAR B M X
Risk-free interest rate 0.138%

= L b A R
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the remuneration committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and
recommended by the remuneration committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" section of this
directors’ report.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Group and the employer’s
pension costs charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year are set out
in notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the financial year.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

Details of company secretary and compliance officer of the
Company is set out in “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued
shares were held by the public) as required by the GEM Listing
Rules during the year and up to the date of this report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice of annual general meeting of the Company will be
published on the website of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at www.hkex.com.hk and the
website of the Company at www.sinosplendid.com, as well as
despatched to shareholders of the Company in due course.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 were audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited
(“Elite Partners”).

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Elite Partners as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
Wang Tao
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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ABOUT THE GROUP

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Sino
Splendid”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”, “we”, “us” or “our”) aim to be the most influential
and leading travel media publisher and event and exhibition
organizer in regard to its company vision. The Group is
committed to achieving the business goals and success, while
simultaneously integrating and adopting environmentally friendly
measures; providing a safe and decent working environment
for our employees, and achieving sustainable values for our
stakeholders and communities.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group is principally
engaged in the following areas, including:

(i) Travel media operations with provision of advertising
services through the internet and travel magazines, event
organizing services, and magazine publication (“Travel
Media Business”);

(i) Provision of contents and advertising services in multiple
well-known financial magazines distributed in The People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) (“Financial Magazine And Other
Media Business”);

(iii) investment in securities (“Securities Investment”);
(iv) money lending (“Money Lending Business”); and

(v) virtual reality business (“Virtual Reality Business”).

ESG GOVERNANCE

The Group recognizes the importance of sustainable
development. Sustainability is crucial for the Group’s growth
in order to achieve business excellence and enhance long-term
competitiveness. The Group has established and implemented
various policies to manage and monitor the risks related to
the environment, employment, operating practices, and the
community. The Group always attaches great importance to
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) issues and has the
following responsibilities:

e review and monitor ESG-related issues on a regular basis;
e collect and compile data on ESG-related issues;

e analyse and report on the legal and moral compliance of
the ESG-related issues; and

e consult and jointly work with independent professionals and
consultants to overcome ESG challenges, if required.
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The key message of the Group’s sustainability mission is to
reinforce the positive correlation between risk management and
governance, followed by product innovation and management
innovation. While the establishment of an ESG working group is
still under discussion, the Board oversees the ESG management
for the Group. ESG mindset should be inherently integrated
within daily operation and business decision-making. In
particular, the Board pays close attention to the risks brought
about by environmental and climate change, which are critical
to the media business. With proper risk management, the
Group is poised to capture various opportunities brought by
environmental change and to make respective policy adjustment
accordingly.

The Group recognizes that ESG policies and practices may
change over time in order to cope with the changes in its
business operations, organizational structures, technology
development, statutory requirements and the business and social
environment, etc. Hence, the Group is committed to providing
adequate resources to monitor the changes and enhance our
ESG capabilities to cope with such changes on an ongoing basis.
In addition, the Group acknowledges its moral obligation to
maintain a high ethical standard by maintaining transparency in
conducting business. The Group is adamant that it will continue
to be law-abiding and be in compliance with the rules and
regulations to achieve its goal of sustainable development in the
environment, society and employees.

The Group continues to engage the key stakeholders, such as
board members, managers, employees, regulators, external
experts, and suppliers, through daily interactions and working
closely with them to discuss and review areas of attention via
various communication channels.

Through the materiality assessment, the Group has identified
the key ESG topics that are “relevant” and “important” to our
business. Based on the result of the materiality assessment, the
issues listed below are of high priority to the Group:

e Employee welfare;

e Inclusion and equal opportunities;

e Talent attraction and retention;

e Occupational health and safety; and

e Training and development.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) provides a detailed account of the sustainability
performance, policies, and strategies of the Group, in particular,
TTG Global Limited and TTG Asia Media Pte Limited’s
operations in Hong Kong (collectively, the “Hong Kong
operation”), and TTG Asia Media Pte Limited’s operations in
Singapore (“TTG Asia” or the “Singapore operation”) for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”).

Scope and Boundary

This ESG Report details the ESG performance of the Group for
the Reporting Period. We apply the concept of materiality in
the planning and developing process of the ESG Report. Unless
otherwise indicated, the scope of the ESG Report covers the
Company and all its subsidiaries.

Reporting Principles

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 20
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).
According to the guideline, the following principles are
underpinned:

1. Materiality: ESG issues that have major impacts on investors
and other stakeholders must be set out in this ESG Report.

2. Quantitative: If the key performance indicators (KPlIs) have
been established, they must be measurable and applicable
to valid comparisons under appropriate conditions. They
must also be able to describe the purpose and impacts of
quantitative information.

3. Balance: This ESG Report must provide an unbiased
picture of the ESG performances of the Group. It should
avoid selecting, omitting, or presenting formats that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the
reader.

4. Consistency: This ESG Report should use consistent and
statistical methodologies to allow meaningful comparisons
of related data over time. Any changes to the methods used
must be specified in the ESG Report.
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Confirmation

The information documented in this ESG Report is sourced and
collected by the Group from official documents, statistical data,
management, and operation information in accordance with
relevant internal policies. The Group has established internal
control systems and a formal review process to ensure that any
information presented in this ESG Report is as accurate and
reliable as possible.

Feedback

The Group discloses the latest business and ESG-related
information regularly to investors and the public. We also
welcome investors and shareholders to share their views with
the Board of the Company by fax at +852 2237 7227 or via
email at info@sinosplendid.com.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

As a responsible enterprise, the Group makes every endeavour
to take effective environmental protection measures to minimize
the environmental impacts caused by the business operation.
The Group strictly complies with the relevant environmental
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and Singapore, such as
Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal Ordinance,
Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance, Water Pollution
Control Ordinance, and Noise Control Ordinance. During the
Reporting Period, no non-compliance with any environmental
protection laws and regulations that had a significant impact
on the Group relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes had been identified.

Use of Resources

Given the Group’s business nature, the Group and its
daily operations have little negative impacts on the natural
environment. The Group only consumes the following resources
in insignificant amounts:

e electricity to carry out its activities;

e freshwater for general offices and staff daily hygiene;

e fuel used for business travel;

e packaging materials in the form of paper and paper bags;
and

e paper for printing and files.
We also promote the efficient use of resources under the 3R

(“Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”) approach in our Environmental
Policies and Guidelines.
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Energy Use

The Group drives to reduce the energy use of both office
operations and event activities. As an eco-friendly measure,
we have installed energy-saving equipment and devices
where feasible. During the Reporting Period, the total energy
consumption was approximately 52.3 MWh-equivalent (2020:
56.7 MWh-equivalent, 2019: 61.3 MWh-equivalent); and the
energy intensity was 1.16 MWh-equivalent per employee (2020:
1.21 MWh-equivalent per employee).

Although energy use is not one of the material ESG topics, the
Group will continue to monitor the energy consumption and
improve efficiency in all operations.

Water Use

Owing to the business and operation nature, the Group only
consumes freshwater for general office and daily uses, and all
its supplies are from the city’s central water supply network.
There was no water sourcing issue during the Reporting Period.
Although the total volume of water consumption is insignificant,
the Group still has policies and guidelines encouraging our
employees to adopt good practices for water-saving as freshwater
is one of the most valuable natural resources on the planet
today. During the Reporting Period, the total water consumption
was approximately 5 cubic meters (“m*”) (2020: 32 m?), which
is 84% less than 2020; and the water intensity was 0.11 m’ per
employee (2020: 0.24 m® per employee).

2020

—ECEF
Direct and indirect energy consumption by type
BEHE S NWEERBEERER
Direct energy consumption 54.4
BEERERERE
Indirect energy consumption 41.6
RZ R E
Total energy consumption 56.7
RERERE
Intensity (by employee) 1.21
mE (REES)
Water consumption in total and intensity
HMAKERAXKRE
Total water consumption 32.0
mAKE
Intensity (by employee) 0.24
BE (ZESR)

40 Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

BEJR (& /H
REBHNRLOPRELEREGETHN
BERER - EA—BAaERERENEG
BPERATER TLRETEREREE -
R E B EREFEBLELN R523KE
FEBE(ZE_ZF 56.7kAREE =
Z—HE613KEEEE) wREEEA
BE4EEBII6KEREE( T -_T4F:
BEZEB121KERSEE) -

HABLREALIFRN KB ERNESGE B
Z— BAREEGEBERBLMONERHE
LIRS EKZES TR MARE -

Ik B IR (& H

ERNERLREBUHE ASEEEEE—
Bt ARBERENANK MAAEBKY
REWTARREKEL - RREHRE - K
SRV EKBUERKENBRE -BERA
KEBE  BAREBDGE T BE &IES
EBEEEXRTHOBAKNRITEE AA
WS BRI EEBEENBABRZ — -
RREHB BRAKENAT K (ZZ
ZEF:NUFK) BZZEZTEFERD
84%  AKZEEAEBRAEEIIMAK(Z
TZ_TF HREB0.24F5K)

2021 Unit
—E- - Ef
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TEE
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K FL B
52.3 MWh-e
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Emissions

Air Emissions

In the Group’s operations, there are no industrial or commercial
processes which cause air pollution locally. In the Reporting
Period, vehicle use in our Singapore operation is the sole source
of air pollutants, and the emission figures are shown in the table

below.
2020

ZTTF
Air emissions in total
BREBAE
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) 1.2
ALY (NO_)
Sulphur oxides (SO,) 0.0
me ¥ so)
Respirable suspended particles (RSP) 0.1
A R A& Z KL F (RSP)
Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The main sources of the Group’s greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions include direct emissions from combustion of fuels
in vehicles (“Scope 1”), indirect emissions of purchased
electricity (“Scope 2”), and other indirect emissions (“Scope 3”)
respectively. In the Reporting Period, the total GHG emissions
were 25.2 tonnes of CO,-equivalent (2020: 33.9 tonnes of CO,-
equivalent, 2019: 65.3 tonnes of CO,-e). Since there was no
business travel due to COVID-19 during the Reporting Period,
the scope 3 emissions reduced significantly. The Scope 3
emissions in 2021 included the greenhouse gases emitted from
the paper waste disposed at landfills, and water and sewage
processing only. For details, please refer to the table below.

2358

ERTRY B

EAGENEEDT TETXIBHRRE
THEMENER SR RBREHHE &
BAFMMEEBLET EHERRER
5 R E — R - PEIREUR FRIIR

2021 Unit
—E-—fF B

1.6 kg
T

0.0 kg
T

0.0 kg
T

SRR HEIN

AEBRZEREBERNEERRRIEER
MBREEENEEER([EE]) -8B
BEMEESER (TEE2]) REmREE
(T8 E3]) RS HE AERE
g R25 2 —Skirgg (2=
TE I _FIREE T —NF:
65308 —FRLIREE) - AR20198 K&
SHREB REPETEFERT HE
E3HEmARER L — T - —FHEE3HE
HEBRREENHEEENBERUKLKES
KEEERMBEERE-FIHHELHT
%0

2020 2021 Unit
i —E--% Ef
Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BEREBHRAEREE
Scope 1 emissions 3.8 4.9 tonnes CO,-e
BENHRE WSt EE
Scope 2 emissions 21.1 14.6  tonnes CO,-e
BE2HRE WSt EE
Scope 3 emissions 9.0’ 0.8% tonnes CO,-e
BEBHRE M SR EE
Total greenhouse gas emissions 33.9 20.3  tonnes CO,-e
BEREBHENAE L g s
Intensity (by revenue) 8.3 1.4  tonnes CO,-e/
HKD million
#E (Baset) Wi — iR E &
BEABTT
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As GHG emissions are the key cause of climate change, the
Group shall continue to monitor the carbon footprint of our
operations and identify possible areas for mitigating our impacts
on the environment.

Waste Generation

The Group’s operations and activities do not generate any
hazardous waste; whereas an insignificant amount of non-
hazardous waste such as living and office wastes are produced
from the offices. In the Reporting Period, a total of less than 0.01
tonne of non-hazardous waste was produced (2020: 0.72 tonne),
and the waste has been sent to landfills. We shall continue to
keep track of the amount of waste produced from our operations.

The Environment and Natural Resources

As a corporate citizen, the Group understands and respects that
we have a responsibility to the environment. The Environmental
Policies and Guidelines are implemented with an aim to
minimize the impact on the environment and natural resources.
Due to the business nature, the impacts of the activities on
the environment and natural resources are not material for
disclosure.

Climate Change

In the recent years, climate change is the major environmental
problem affecting both Singapore and Hong Kong. There are
physical and transition risks caused by climate change. Average
global temperature and sea levels are expected to rise if carbon
emissions from human activities continue to grow unchecked,
and the frequency and intensity of the extreme weather events
are likely to increase. Extreme weather events can lead to
changes in rainfall patterns, resulting in more severe rainfall or
typhoons. The Group will review the existing measures to ensure
the safety of its employees during extreme weather. Besides,
changes in laws and regulations due to climate change may also
have impacts on the business operation.

The Group recognizes that the emission of greenhouse gases is
one of the factors leading to climate change. Although there are
no industrial or commercial processes in the daily operation, the
Group will still promote a green lifestyle among the employees
and strive to reduce the use of vehicles and electricity. The
Group will do its part to reduce emissions while ensuring that it
continues to grow and prosper.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

Employment and Labour Practices

The management of the Group believes that employees are
the most valuable asset and an indispensable part of our
business. Through the Human Resources Department, the
Group has adopted fair and equitable policies and practices, to
pursue and provide a safe and pleasant working environment
for all employees, regardless of age, gender, family status,
sexual orientation, ethnicity, creed, and religion, or other
characteristics.

The Group also recognizes the importance and necessity of
continuing training for the growth and development of its
employees. Therefore, the Group strives to provide training
opportunities and support in various ways.

Employment

We strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations in
our employment and labour process, for instance, recruitment,
dismissal, promotion, and remuneration of employees regardless
of where we operate. The legitimate rights and interests
of employees are protected in accordance with laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
in respect of employment and labour practices, such as Labour
Law and Labour Contract Law of the Hong Kong and Singapore.

Policies on employees’ rights and benefits, including public
holidays, annual paid leaves, sick leaves, maternity leaves
have been formulated and executed per the Labour Law and
Labour Contract Law of the Hong Kong and Singapore, and
Salary Payment Regulations of the Hong Kong and Singapore.
Employees in the Hong Kong and Singapore have been provided
with MPF and CPF.

The Group formulates its own reward system with reference
to market salary trends. Individual employee’s contribution to
the Group is also a major consideration in salary adjustment.
Overall, there are three types of salary adjustment: regular
salary adjustment, seniority salary adjustment, and post salary
adjustment. There was no change in its recruitment procedure
during this Reporting Period. No major changes have been made
to the appraisal, promotion, reward and penalty system. All
employees are liable for promotion based on their competence
and suitability for specific position. When there is a vacancy,
priority is given to internal employees.

RESRRE R AR
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Equal opportunity is provided to all employees in terms of
promotion, appraisal, training, development and other aspects.
Employees are not discriminated against or deprived of
opportunities based on gender, nationality, ethnic background,
religion, political affiliation, age, marital status, and physical
disability.

The Group mainly recruits local workers with suitable skills. In
line with the continuously growing business scale, the Group
also actively acquires talents from different countries and/
or background to join our team, which includes Singaporean,
Malaysian, Chinese, and Hong Kong workers. As at the end
of the Reporting Period, the Group had an aggregate of 45
employees (2020: 47, 2019: 67), of which 7 (2020: 6, 2019: 10)
were based in Hong Kong, 7 (2020: 7, 2019: 13) in China and
30 (2020: 33, 2019: 43) in Singapore.

The following figures are based on the total number of
employees at the end of the Reporting Period.

Number of Employee By Gender
BEHE (EMHED)

B Female Zf mMale B m <30

Number of Employee By
Geographical Region
EEHE (RHESHT)

18%

67%

H Hong Kong ® China Singapore
B

HE EpIE S EEE
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Number of Employee By Age Group
BEHE (RFRARED)

9%

29%)

y

m31-40

41 -50 >50

Number of Employee By Level
EEHE (ZRERET)

Middle
= AR HAR EIE

Junior
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Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance and care to its employees’
health and safety in the workplace and strictly complies with
relevant laws and regulations, which include but not limited
to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance. The Group
has equipped workplaces with a complete set of required safety
equipment and facilities. All supervisors and site managers
are constantly reminded to ensure that the workplace is safe
by taking all reasonable measures to place employee safety as
the top priority. Equally important is the Group’s belief that all
employees have a duty to look after their safety. The integration
of these principles is the key approach of the Group on the
health and safety of employees.

In Singapore, the Ministry of Manpower performs regular checks
on office safety; occupational health, and safety measures, such
as the use of ladders for retrieving files from high cabinets.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have material
non-compliance with the laws and regulations in relation to
occupational safety and health in the Hong Kong and Singapore
to prevent occupational health and safety risks and protect the
occupational safety of employees. There were no hazardous
activities involved in the Group’s operations. The Group did
not have any work-related fatal accidents and injuries in 2019,
2020, and 2021.

ETEREMILT B AR

Number of work-related fatalities

Rate of work-related fatalities AT ERE ML T/ AE
tb =
Lost days due to work injury THBREAIERE

Development and Training

During the Reporting Period, the Group sponsored and organized
a total of 135 hours of training (2020: 264 hours, 2019: 64
hours) for 5 staff members (2020: 16 staff members, 2019: 4 staff
members), representing 11% of our total number of employees.

The Group continuously offers and sponsors training to staff
at all levels and of both genders to enhance their skills and
professional knowledge, which ultimately benefits the employees
as well as the Group. We will continue to explore and support
such a practice in the future.
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Labour Standards

Our Group monitors the recruitment process closely in order
to ensure compliance with relevant rules and regulations,
and forbids any child and forced labour. The Group strictly
complies with the Labour Laws of Hong Kong, Employment Act
of Singapore, and other applicable laws and regulations. The
Group strives to provide the required labour protection, safety
and health conditions to ensure employees’ safety during their
services.

We prohibit child and forced labour in any of our operations
including the production process. We have established a strict
protocol for hiring, of which we screen candidates in accordance
with the minimum age of their respective work locations. As the
minimum hiring age is 18 in Singapore, hired employees must
sign an employment letter to agree on the terms and conditions.

The Group also paid wages and salaries, benefits and
compensations on schedule. During the Reporting Period, there
have been no cases of prosecution against the Group due to
violation of any relevant labour laws and regulations including
but not limited to the prevention of child and forced labour.

Operating Practices
The Group’s principal businesses in 2021 were:

[.  publishing of regional trade titles for the travel industry, and
Singapore maps and guides for inbound tourists. The Group
completed 5 specialized projects and entered into numerous
partnerships with renowned global travel trade events and
organisations; and

[I. organizing of international trade events and exhibitions — a
total of 8 events in Asia were involved.

The Group exercises due care in dealing with its significant
number of suppliers and buyers. The Group needs to ensure its
product and service quality as well as observe its obligations on
fairness, equity and transparency on business and operational
practices.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group has formulated a Purchase Policy on the principle
that the purchases are not only for fulfilling the business needs
but also integrate social responsibility into purchasing decisions.
All of the suppliers will undergo the following reviewing
processes:

*  Quotation comparison and review of supplier’s offering in
relation to procurement needs as well as track record;

e Outlining of expectations and requirements with
documentation in a formal contract/agreement;

e Confirmation of vendor through mutual acknowledgement
of the agreement;

e Feedback-loop process during duration of service between
users and the vendor;

e Internal review of vendor satisfaction; and

e Sharing of internal review with vendor for the discussion
of next steps (either continue the contract with vendor,
Confirmation of vendor subject to select deliverables or
Termination of vendor).

Apart from assessing its suppliers on quality, cost, service
and delivery time, the Group also assesses whether potential
suppliers of goods and services have demonstrated that they
also commit to environmental and social responsibilities.
The environmental and social risk assessment for suppliers
would be conducted in a periodical basis based on the news
announcement, ongoing quality or work delivered. Areas, such
as their policies on the use of recycled or natural materials and
forbidding child and forced labour employment, are the Group’s
concerns in selecting our suppliers.
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In addition, cost-saving and efficiency in logistics management
and goods travel are the Group’s guiding criteria affecting our
decisions. The Group has continued to adopt a decentralized
procurement approach at the operational level which is required
to follow the above policy and guiding criteria as strictly as
possible. Subsidiaries are given full autonomy in sourcing
suppliers based on their local business needs. The Group strives
to procure sustainable materials from local suppliers whenever
possible as a part of its effort to promote a low-carbon operation.

The Group also continues to source our supplies from local
suppliers to support local economic development and ensure the
effectiveness of supply. According to the GRI G4 Sustainability
Reporting Guidelines, a local supplier is defined as an
organization that provides a product or service to the reporting
entity and that is based in the same geographical market as
the reporting entity (that is, no transnational payments to the
supplier are made). During the Reporting Period, the Group had
a total of 60 suppliers 53 of the suppliers are from Singapore.

With the Group’s belief in the value and benefits of building
trust with the suppliers, we continue to practice a transparent
tendering system for its procurement with the purpose to
eliminate malpractice and bribery incidents in accordance with
the local laws.

Product Responsibility

Product and Service Quality

Our Group is deeply aware of the importance of product quality
of its saleable products and services. The Group has established
reporting systems on after-sales services to ensure that service
users and product buyers are satisfied with the products and
services. If there are any disputes, procedures and systems
are in place to timely address any dissatisfaction reported or
discovered. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have
a record of compensating or refunding any sales based on the
“quality” of our products and services.
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Protection of Customer Privacy

The Group’s business operation has generated large volumes of
private and confidential information on buyers and suppliers.
We are both morally and legally bound to treat the information
and data carefully and have committed to abiding by the
requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong
Kong and other relevant laws, regulations and requirements.
The data of our customers and suppliers are kept under a secure
system by our senior management, and employees have been
warned not to access or use this information without approval.
The Group also established “Privacy Policy” aiming to protecting
your privacy and personal information. The Group did not
experience any private information leakage during the Reporting
Period.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group recognizes the importance of intellectual property
rights. The Group duly pays writers and designers who allow
the Group to print and use their intellectual property in its
travel media publications and international trade events and
exhibitions. The Group was not subject to any litigation for any
infringement of intellectual property rights for the Reporting
Period.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining
openness, uprightness and accountability of its employees and
all employees are expected to uphold ethical, personal and
professional conduct standards. We have established a set of
stringent policies and code of conduct to emphasise values
of integrity, fairness, transparency and accountability to stand
against corruption and fraud. Our Employees’ Handbook
mentions that all directors, officers and employees of the Group
shall observe and be in compliance with high standards of
ethical behaviour. In addition, our Group’s strong stance against
corruption and fraud is communicated to all employees so as to
ensure they are fully aware.
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Whistle-blowing mechanisms can be triggered by employees
through email when suspicious of any signs of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering issues. Information of the whistle-
blower is confidential. Once discovered and confirmed, the
related personnel will be punished according to the severity of
the incident or his/her employment will be terminated.

To strengthen the anti-corruption practice and enhance its
employees’ awareness on conflicts of interest and integrity
issues, internal training and relevant materials relating to anti-
money laundering and anti-corruption will be provided to
Directors.

The Group was in strict compliance with the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance and no legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees during the Reporting
Period. The Group did not violate any laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on the Group relating to corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud and money-laundering.

Community

Community Investment

The Group is committed to improving our communities and the
lives of stakeholders in our communities. The Group encourages
and supports our staff to take part in volunteer services such
as regularly assisting those in need or poverty and arranging
outdoor activities for disadvantaged groups. Internally, the Group
focuses on providing more job opportunities to new employees,
improving employees” working environment and skills by
investing in facilities and training.

The Group also strives to provide employment opportunities for
the disadvantaged, retired and disabled who have completed
retraining courses, and give priority to suppliers who hire
disabled persons.
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SUMMARY OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FEEMISEEME

(KPIS)
2021 Unit
Environmental Aspects RIBEM@ —B=-—F B
Aspect A1: Emissions BEAT: BRY
A1.1 The types of emissions and ALl BERYEEREER
respective emissions data PR BB
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) R2ELY (NO,) 1.6 kg 5=
Sulphur oxides (SO,) REALY (SO, 0.0 kg 5=
Respirable suspended CILSPN -S4 *L?(RSP) 0.0 kg T
particles (RSP)
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions Al2 BERBAFHREREE
in total and intensity
Scope 1 emissions SHE1HME 4.9 tonnes CO,-e
W tEE
Scope 2 emissions SEE2HME 14.6 tonnes CO,-e
Wo—EtmEE
Scope 3 emissions SEBHHME 0.8 tonnes CO,-e
W—StREE
Total greenhouse gas emissions BEREHHMAEE 20.3 tonnes CO,-e
W tEE
Intensity (by revenue) BE (ERR&EE) 1.4 tonnes CO,-e/
HKD million
W —FiREE
BBET
Aspect A2: Use of Resources BEA2 :ERER
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy A2 REBESWEERS
consumption by type EEEREEE
Direct energy consumption EEEREEE 71.5 C&EEE
Indirect energy consumption BZEREEE 32.5 MWh J& L B
Total energy consumption RERBIEE 52.3 MWh-e
KEEFEE
Intensity (by employee) BE (ZESF) 1.16  MWh-e/employee
KEBEEEE
A2.2 Water consumption A22 BFEKERFEKRBE
in total and intensity
Total water consumption BIEKE 5.0 m33Z 77 3K
Intensity (by employee) BE (ZESF) 0.11 m*employee
YEK/EE
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Social Aspects tEEE 2021
—E-——5F
Aspect B1: Employment EmEB1 : EfE
B1.1 Total workforce B1.1 B BB
Total number of employees EERH 45
By gender RERIE 5
Female gl 30
Male S 15
By employment type REREALE D
Full-time i 44
Part-time P 1
By age group REBAERE S
30 years old or below 30BREIA T 4
31-40 years old 31-405% 13
41-50 years old 41-50%% 9
Over 50 years old 508% A £ 19
By level RERE D
Management IR 17
Senior = AR 12
Middle aal 15
Junior EIFS 1
By function e A )
Executive REER 37
Technical R Aig 2
Administrative 1T 5
Manual TA 1
By geographical region i & 5
Hong Kong BB 8
Singapore N3 30
China Gy 7
B1.2 Employee turnover rate B1.2 EBEMAX
Total employee turnover rate HREEMRKX 29%
By gender ®RIERIE 5
Female g 30%
Male EERi 27%
By employment type RERRALE D
Full-time 28 30%
Part-time e BB 0%
By age group REWwARNE D
30 years old or below 30 BIA T 100%
31-40 years old 31-40%% 23%
41-50 years old 41-508% 33%
Over 50 years old 505% bA £ 1%
By geographical region ®i =& o
Hong Kong EE 25%
Singapore 1 hn3% 37%
China + 0%
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RIE - HERERKRE
Social Aspects tEEE ) 2021

Aspect B2: Health and Safety BEB2 REHEZZ

B2.1 Number of work-related fatalities B2.1 HITERAERMETH AR 0
Rate of work-related fatalities (per EITERAERMETH ABLL X 0%

hundred workers) (LA®100% T A5H)
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury B2.2 HIBEEIIERE 0

Aspect B3: Development and Training
B3.1 Number of trained employees
Total number of trained employees

Percentage of total employees trained

By gender
Female
Male

By level
Management
Senior
Middle
Junior

By function
Executive
Technical
Administrative
Manual

B3.2 Average training hours completed

Training hours per employee

By gender
Female
Male

By level
Management
Senior
Middle
Junior

By function
Executive
Technical
Administrative
Manual

RESRRE R AR

[EMEB3 : 2R HE5E I
B3.1 ZHlE B A8
ZHE B 42 8k

RXIMBEBED L

BRI &5
pegis
B

EERE »
EIE
=R
AR
CIE

L »
KEER
F AT
T
TA

B3.2 TERR ) B0 PG B B
BHBTHEIIKE

ZHRIE o
peglia
B

BERE D
==
= &%
AR
EIE

EHEEE D
KEER
i
1T
TA

5
11%

40%
60%

100%
20%
40%
20%

60%
OO/O
OO/O
00/0

3 hours /) B

2.7 hours /\F
3.7 hours /]NEF

N7
N=3
N=3
N=3

0.9 hours”

0 hours~’
5.3 hours”
40 hours”

[ S S

3.6 hours /|\FF
0 hours /JNEF
0 hours /NEF
0 hours /JNEF
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Social Aspects

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical
region
Total number of suppliers
By geographical region
Hong Kong
Singapore
China
Australia

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls
B6.2 Number of products and service-

related complaints received

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is always committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance. The Company throughout the year 2021
has fully complied with the applicable code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings in
securities (the “Required Standard of Dealings”) as set out in
rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company, all the
Directors confirmed that they complied with or they were not
aware of any non-compliance with the Required Standard of
Dealings for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders value.

For Board composition, please refer to the section “DIRECTORS”
in the “Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

On 19 November 2021, Mr. Chow Chi Wa (“Mr. Chow”)
resigned as an executive Director due to his health reason which
require more of his dedication and time.

Throughout the year 2021, the Company has complied with
rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence in writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material relationship) between members of the Board.
Biographies of Directors are set out in “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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Board responsibilities and delegation

The overall management of the Company’s businesses is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and determines the overall strategies and
decides on significant financial and operational issues. Types of
decisions reserved for the Board are those affecting the Group’s
overall strategic and financial policies, material contracts and
major investments.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the management which is responsible
for the execution of the strategies and polices adopted by the
Board.

Attendance at Board and general meetings

The Board held 8 meetings during the financial year ended
31 December 2021 to consider, among other things, reviewing
and approving the quarterly, half-yearly, annual results and
payment of dividend (if any) of the Group.

The attendance record of each Director at Board and general
meetings in 2021 is set out below:

Directors

EE
HITES

Executive Directors

AEE (R-F-—F
+—A+NBABIE)

Chow Chi Wa (Resigned with effect from
19 November 2021)

Wang Tao B

Yang Xingan B
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Yang Shuyan 15 RER

Wang Qingling TER

Lee Yim Wah T

The directors were absent from Annual General Meeting due to
isolation arrangements of Hong Kong Government.
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MR AGH M ERE:
Board meeting ~ General meeting
attendance/ attendance/
Number of Number of
Meetings Meetings
Exgel BRRAE
HERY, HERY,
ERRY BRRHY
6/8 11
8/8 0/1
4/8 0/1
8/8 0/1
8/8 0/1
8/8 0/1
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Directors’ continuous training and development

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors are provided with updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects regularly to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development (the “CPD”) to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, all Directors had participated in the CPD by
reading materials and/or attending training courses, seminars
or workshops organized by professional bodies on corporate
governance or updates on laws, rules and regulations relating to
the roles, functions and duties of a Director.

The individual record of each Director who received training for
the year is summarized as follows:

Directors

=

=

Executive Directors BTES

AEE (R-F-—F
+—HA+NAEE)

Chow Chi Wa (Resigned with effect from
19 November 2021)

Wang Tao &

Yang Xingan HEZ
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BYFHITES
Yang Shuyan 15 M ER

Wang Qingling TER

Lee Yim Wah FThE
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R

Course/Seminar/

Workshop organized by

Professional Bodies Reading materials

e 3 40 0
RE/WHE/

HRE CE DR
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v/

v/

v/

v/
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated. The primary role of the Chairman is to provide
leadership for the Board and to ensure that it works effectively
in discharging its responsibilities. The Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's
business. On 19 November 2021, Mr. Chow resigned as a Chief
Executive Office and The Board’s chairlady, Ms. Xu Yun, resigned
on 21 December 2015, the Group is still seeking replacement
for the above two position.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 2 years
and are subject to rotational retirement and re-election in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to discharge the
Board functions. The respective roles, responsibilities and
activities of each of the Board committees are set out below:

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the audit committee are to ensure (i) the
reliability and integrity of the financial reporting of the Group;
(ii) that effective risk management and internal control systems
are functioning within the Group; and (iii) an appropriate
relationship is maintained with the external auditor. The terms of
reference of the audit committee are available on the Company’s
website.

The committee composition and the attendance record of each
of the committee members during the year is as follows:

Directors

BE=

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES
Yang Shuyan (committee chairlady) BB (ZEEELE)
Wang Qingling TE®

Lee Yim Wah &3 k=

During the year, the audit committee reviewed the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, reviewed the
annual results for 2020, quarterly and half-yearly results for
2021 and reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems.
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Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to (i)
determine the policy, procedures and criteria for the nomination
of directors, (ii) review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board, (iii) identify individuals suitably qualified
to become board members, (iv) assess the independence
of INEDs, (v) make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and (vi) monitor
the implementation of the board diversity policy. The terms of
reference of the nomination committee are available on the
Company’s website.

The committee composition and the attendance record of each
of the committee members during the year is as follows:

Directors

Ex
BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

Yang Shuyan (committee chairlady) BREB(ZEEELE)

Wang Qingling TE®R
Lee Yim Wah £ o

During the year, the nomination committee reviewed the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board, assessed
the independence of all INEDs and reviewed the retirement of
Directors by rotation and the re-election of the retiring Directors.

Nomination Policy

The nomination committee will assess the candidate or
incumbent on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and
ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities. The recommendations of the nomination
committee will then be put to the Board for decision.

Procedure for Nomination of Directors

When there is a vacancy in the Board, the nomination committee
evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the
Board, and identifies any special requirements for the vacancy.
The nomination committee will then identify suitable candidates
and convene a nomination committee meeting to discuss and
vote on the nomination of director(s) and make recommendation
to the Board on the candidate(s) for directorship.

Criteria for Nomination of Directors

The nomination committee will consider candidates who possess
the particular skills, experience and expertise that will best
complement the Board effectiveness at that time. In considering
the overall balance of the Board’s composition, the nomination
committee will give due consideration to the board diversity
policy of the Company.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavors to ensure that the Board had a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s business. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background and professional experience. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time.

The nomination committee reviewed the board diversity policy
and achievement of objectives and effectiveness of the board
diversity policy, and recommended the Board that the existing
Board was appropriately structured and no change was required.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted the model to delegate the
determination of the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management to the remuneration
committee. The committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending remuneration policy to the Board and reviewing
and making recommendations on compensation-related issues.
The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are
available on the Company’s website.

The committee composition and the attendance record of each
of the committee members during the year is as follows:

Directors

=
BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

Yang Shuyan (committee chairlady) BRB(ZTEEL/E)

Wang Qingling TE®R
Lee Yim Wah U
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During the year, the remuneration committee reviewed the
Group's policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors
and senior management, assessed performance of executive
Directors, reviewed and recommended to the Board the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management and
ensured that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration of the senior management whose particulars
are contained in “Biographical details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report for the year ended
31 December 2021 by band is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HK$)

MeeEE (UEBTHE)

Nil to 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

a. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

b. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

c. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

e. To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company.

The statement of the external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

During the year, the remuneration paid to the external auditor
for audit service is HK$410,000.

COMPANY SECRETARY

On 19 November 2021, Mr. Chow resigned as a Company
Secretary and Mr Yu Tat Chi, appointed as a Company Secretary
effected on 19 November 2021. He has undertaken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training to update his skills and
knowledge in 2021.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward proposals at general meeting
Pursuant to article 59 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for directing enquires to the Board
Shareholders may send their written enquiries to the Company,
for the attention of company secretary, by fax: (852) 2237 7227,
or mail to Unit 2302, 23/F., New World Tower 1, 18 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, ensuring that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Group maintains an effective internal control and risk
management system. The Company has engaged an independent
consultant performed the internal audit reviews for the Group.
The Independent consultant has recommended an internal audit
plan to the management of the Company and the Board, and
assisted the Company to review the internal control system on
certain selected processes for the year ended 31 December
2021. The management of the Company agreed on the findings
and adopted the recommendations accordingly.

The Board reviews the risk management and internal controls
annually and has through the Audit Committee and with the
assistance of the management, independent consultant and
external auditors, conducted a review of, and is satisfied with
the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2021
as well as the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

No internal audit team has been set up during the year since
it is not cost effective in view of the small and simple size and
structure of the Group. However, the Board will continue to
review the need for one annually.

The Group adopted a risk management framework which

comprises the following processes:

— ldentify significant risk in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the

Group’s business;

—  Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and

—  Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.
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The Group formulated the policies and procedures of risk
management and internal control as follows:

The Group established an organisational structure with clear
operating and reporting procedures, lines of responsibility
and delegated authority;

Each operating subsidiary maintains internal controls and
procedures appropriate to its structure;

Relevant executive Directors and senior management have
been delegated with specific accountability for monitoring
the performance of designated business operating units; and

A systematic review of the financial and business processes
in order to provide management the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls. Where weaknesses are
identified in the system of internal controls, management
will evaluate and take necessary measures to ensure that
improvements are implemented.

The Board reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems adopted by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and considered that they were effective and adequate.

Dissemination of inside information

The Group has management control to ensure that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any officers
should be promptly identified, assessed and forwarded to the
Board (if appropriate).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINO SPLENDID HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino
Splendid Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to
167, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2021,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key Audit Matter
RREBETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFOMEEBERETSHE

Impairment assessment on accounts receivable, loans receivables and other receivables

FE W B K B UK B R % L Al P W R IR 2 R (B T A

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying
amounts of accounts receivable, loans
receivables and other receivables amounted to
approximately HK$30,587,000, HK$8,913,000 and
HK$38,837,000 respectively.
RZEBEZ—F+ZA=+—HB EBREF EBEKE
R B A fE W FRIE 2 BREDFE 9 5149 /330,587,000
77T ~ 8,913,000/ 7T 238,837,000/ TT ©

Management judgment is required in assessing and
determining the recoverability of accounts, loans
and other receivables and adequacy of allowance
made using the expected credit losses (‘ECL”)
model under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.
ARG R B B BR A B SR N L A R M ROR
AR EIE R EREEM B RELERFOR (&R T
AIETHREREEER ([RHEEEHR])RAIE
HHBEERT TR EEEAEL A -

We had identified loss allowance for ECL on
accounts receivables, loans receivables and other
receivables as a key audit matter because the
assessment of the recoverability of accounts, loans
and other receivables and recognition of loss
allowance are inherently subjective and requires
significant management judgment, which increases
the risk of error or potential management bias.
HAIE IR K FE M E TR K H A FE W R IR A TR
HEEEBENBEREEIN SBEREFTZR RA
75 T A e AR TR~ UG R R B A FE M R TR O RT R
B REABEERBEAE LAGIELE YFEE
BEELEAHE Mg mERSBEEERER
Re Rk -
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on accounts receivable, loans
receivables and other receivables included:

0B IR B LR WRBR AR B MRS R N L R W R
TR ERE  HPIEITHNRF 2

e We discussed with management and independent
external valuer engaged by the Company
in relation to the methodology, basis and
assumptions used to see whether the methodology
and assumptions used were reasonable and
appropriate;

e BMEEEEN BEARZEMBIINEGER
Al A AT A R O B R R AREE PR 1A K

BREAAENMEE

e We checked, on a sample basis, for the accuracy,
appropriateness and reliance of the input date
used; and

o HfEEREMABABBNERE - EEUELA
SR

e We evaluated the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent external
valuer taking into account its experience and
qualifications.

o HMFFEBILIN A ERMME N REELE &2
BHER KRB -

We considered the management’s conclusion to be
consistent with the available information.

BPIRSEREMIEAERERAERER-
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Key Audit Matter
RREBEITER

B HE RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFONMEEBERETSE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and goodwill

MR BERRE ERAEEERBE ZRBENML

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group recognised impairment losses of property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
goodwill reserve of approximately HK$2,401,000,
HK$4,250,000 and HK$5,161,000 respectively
which were belongs to multiple cash generating
units (“CGUs”) as detailed in note 16, note 17 and
note 18.

HET-_—F+T-_A=+—HLEFE E&EE
BRYME KEMRE CAREERBERFBLZ
BB &5 18 5 5 492,401,000 7T~ 4,250,000/ 7T K
5161,0008 0 EERNZERSELSEMN ([RE
EEBA])  FIHHNME16 - MaE17 R MFE18 -

For the purpose of the impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and goodwill the Group appointed an independent
external valuer to assess the recoverable amount of
the CGUs at the end of the reporting period.
AE -BELRE CRAEEERBE ZRERF
mmEr BEEEZEBIINEGERMT GRS H
RACELBEM ZAIKROISH-

We had identified impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and goodwill as a key audit matter because the
balance was material and significant management
judgement was required to determine the key
assumptions including estimated future income,
operating margins and discount rate, etc.

BRERYE KRB ERREERBEL
MEMEIENSERETER REAREEREBES
R BEETHERER (BEMAGFRERA E2ME
REMARE)FREEEFHENHE -

RESRRE R AR

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and goodwill included the following:
BHERYME HE LB EREEE LB ERERF
EHEFEEANEA:

e We discussed with management as to whether
there was any indicator of impairment.

o HMEERETWRLFEMEMABENR-

e We obtained cash flow forecasts relating to
the each CGUs prepared by management and
approved by the directors of the Company.

e BMBBEEERHEALL ELAREFHENS
BEcEABUNRSRERA-

e We discussed with management and independent
external valuer engaged by the Group in relation
to the methodology, basis and assumptions
used in arriving at the forecasts (e.g. estimated
growth rate and discount rate etc.) to see whether
the methodology and assumptions used were
reasonable and appropriate.

e HMBEEEN BEXEZEMBIIEGERM
EBFAMAN T BERRK (W{EFER
KRR ERE)ET W AT RABITERRR
EEBABEIEE -

e We checked the accuracy appropriateness and
reliance of the input data used.

o HFMREMABAREZERE EEERASEE-

e We evaluated the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent external
value taking into account its experience and
qualifications.

o RAFBEBILIMEEEMOEN BRI &2
BEEERNER-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

68 Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of user taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the those charge with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charge with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Wai Nam, William with
Practising Certificate number PO5957.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A
ma

SEREM2ARER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
B st FHET FET
Revenue 3 5 63,663 41,150
Cost of sales i B AR (36,505) (20,156)
Gross profit EH| 27,158 20,994
Other income and other net gains Bt A B B A U 55 % 2R 7 4,663 10,090
Reversal of impairment loss/ EHEEEERXTREA
(impairment losses) under expected gD, CRERRE)
credit loss model, net R 8 5,689 (20,676)
Impairment loss on property, plant and M 2SR 2R EEE
equipment - (212)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEE REEE (489) (199)
Selling and distribution expenses HE KD HKA (6,765) (3,361)
Administrative expenses TERX (52,434) (35,499)
Finance costs ELE= DN 9 (201) (202)
Loss before taxation BrEi R E 1B (22,379) (29,065)
Income tax credit PR Bk % 10 249 5,468
Loss for the year FREIE 11 (22,130) (23,597)
Other comprehensive expenses: Hit2EBX:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently EZAIEEHF /I BEBH
to profit or loss: BHE:
Exchange difference on translations of BREBINEBELZELER
foreign operations 2,512) (1,771)
Other comprehensive expenses FREMEERAX
for the year, net of income tax HMBRFTIS T (2,512) (1,771)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year F R 2B XA (24,642) (25,368)
Loss for the year attributable to: FREMLER:
— Owners of the Company —RRAIFEA (22,130) (23,597)
— Non-controlling interests —JEFERE S - -
(22,130) (23,597)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FREGZEBE A
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company A WNECIES YN (24,642) (25,368)
— Non-controlling interests —JE R S = =
(24,642) (25,368)
Loss per share (HK cents) BRER (B)
- Basic —EX 15 4.72) (5.58)
- Diluted — 8% 15 (4.72) (5.58)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B IEIR R

As at 31 December 2021 /F"f;f*fﬁf A=+—H

2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi = 7
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt it FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y EB 2P E 16 2,401 1,519
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 - 679
Goodwill S 18 5,161 5,161
Financial assets at fair value EBEAnEit ABE2
through profit or loss TRELEE 19 4,250 47,537
11,812 54,896
Current Assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value EBEAnEit ABE2
through profit or loss TRVEE 19 26,539 20,005
Loan receivables B E K 20 8,913 9,608
Accounts and other receivables JFE LK BR 3R % B b B IR IE 21 69,424 66,336
Inventories T8 22 791 =
Tax recoverable CIEqEE e 45 =
Cash and bank balances Re RiRITERR 23 37,160 52,105
142,872 148,054
Current Liabilities REBAE
Accounts and other payables JRE A BR 3R Ko HL At B {5 R IR 24 13,294 42,145
Bond payable JE & 5 25 6,180 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 544 776
Tax liabilities HIEAE = 3,240
20,018 46,161
Net Current Assets BERBEE 122,854 101,893
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities BREERRBEE 134,666 156,789
Non-current Liability FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 119 179
Net Assets FEE 134,547 156,610
Capital and Reserves R R %
Share capital A& < 26 4,784 4,630
Reserves 1 27 127,734 149,951
Equity attributable to owners of RAFIFEE ARIGER
the Company 132,518 154,581
Non-controlling interests eI 28 2,029 2,029
Total Equity R 134,547 156,610

NRET/TEFHEATERERNR T ==
F=A=+— E%i%Am&&&%ﬂ%
WHATALTRRESE:

The consolidated financial statements on page 72 to 167 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yang Xingan Wang Tao
BREZ IE

Director Director
EF EF

PEERRBERARLT T —FF® 73



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AERBER

n‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z - F - —#F+ _H=+—HIFZF

Attributable to owners of the Company

ENCEEPN, 1
(Accumulated
Capital losses)/ Non-
Share Share Goodwill  Redemption Reserve  Translation Retained controlling
capital Share premium  option reserve Capital reserve reserve reserve fund Reserves profit Subtotal interests Total
4HE (B3HER) /
e REEE BRERRE AR HREE B ELE EXRE REER Mt FBRER EL)
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T TiEr TiEr FiEr FEr Er FErT FET FET FET FET FET
(note 26)  (note 2715)) (note 30)  (note 271i§)  (note 27(iif)  (note 271iv))  (note 27(v))  (note 27vi))
(Ws) (W) (o) (Bdo)  (Wion)  (Bai)  (E2w)  (FE2m)
At 1 January 2020 RZE-%5-A-H 3,858 72,982 = 755 (31,193) 11,690 19,025 48,031 48,578 173,726 2,029 175,755
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (23,597) (23,597) S 23,597)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, — FREM2ER T NHHEH
net of income tax:
Exchange difference on translations of REBNEBELCES 2R
foreign operations - - - - - - - (1,771) - (1,771) - (1,771)
Total comprehensive expense for the year  FR2ER % - - - - - - (1,771 (23,597) (25,368) - (25,368)
Recognition of equity-settled BRNRALEENRA B
share-based payments ERZHR - - 822 - - - - - - 822 - 822
Issue of shares under placing REREFARA 7 4,629 - - - - - - - 5401 S 5,401
Impairment on goodwill A2HE = = = 31,193 = = = (31,193) = = -
At31 December 2020 and RZF-BETZA=T-HR
1 January 2021 “3--5-A-8 4630 77,611 822 755 - 11,690 19,025 46,260 (6,212) 154,581 2,029 156,610
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - - (22,130) (22,130) - (22,130)
Other comprehensive expense for the year,  FAEK2ER X MEFAEH
net of income tax:
Exchange difference on translations of BEEBNERELZENZE
foreign operations - - - - - - 2,512) - (2,512) - (2,512)
Total comprehensive expense for the year M2 AR X 4% - - - = = = = 2,512) (22,130) (24,642) = (24,642)
Issue of share upon exercised BiTRBREEARG
the share option 154 1,635 (487) - - - - - - 1,302 - 1,302
Recognition of equity-settled BRNRAEE RN BER
share-based payment DES - - 1,277 - - - - - - 1277 - 1,277
AU31 December 2021 W-2--§tZB=t-8 4,784 79,46 1,612 755 - 11,690 19,025 43,748 28340 132518 2,029 134,547
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE=-F = —#F+=-H=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F TE-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERED
Loss before taxation B F BB 1B (22,379) (29,065)
Adjustments for: A
Bank interest income RITRE A (3) (5)
Depreciation of property, M HERRBITE
plant and equipment 589 442
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 720 2,182
Financial costs & BAR 201 202
(Reversal of)/impairment loss recognised (BE) HERERRFORERRE
on accounts receivables (6,926) 19,513
Impairment loss on loan receivables FE W E RO B B 1R 695 1,125
Impairment loss on other receivables H th & W SR IR AL 1B B 1 542 38
Impairment loss on property, W% - 2SN REREEE
plant and equipment - 212
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets A ERMERE 489 199
Fair value changes on financial assets BARBEAAERZZERMEEZ
at fair value through profit or loss AURIERZED) 8,797 2,280
Realised (gain)/loss on financial assets RARBEFAEBRIEREEZ
at fair value through profit or loss D () B8 (4,052) 77
Dividend income on financial assets BRAREFAEBERZEREEL
at fair value through profit or loss A EUA (1,403) (7,483)
Gain on termination of lease RIEHEE W - (85)
Equity settled share based payment M{E B FH 2 A B E ARG &
expenses for employees ER o NRAEX 1,277 822
Operating cash flows before movements LEEEHAIcRERENE
in working capital (21,453) (9,546)
Increase in inventories FEE M (791) =
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivables FEUBR FOm A4 (38 40) 1,155 (596)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FERFRIA R B E At U R IR
deposits and other receivables () R 2,141 (32,817)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payables — FEAFERFRIE I (E ) 1,018 (1,844)
Decrease in other payables and Hth & 5008 K 5T B E R
accrued liabilities (29,820) (77)
Decrease in loan receivables B W E FUR A = 3,502
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS REEKFTABRS (47,750) (41,378)
Income tax paid B PEH (3,036) (1,343)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHAZREFHE
ACTIVITIES (50,786) (42,721)
FEERRRERBRLT T —FF® 75



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/-ﬁ Iﬁ:%/ﬂbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —FE = —F+=-H=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F TE-THF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Dividend income received from financial BUWIEZEARBAEBZZEREEZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss i E A 1,403 7,483
Interest received B FLE 3 5
Proceed from disposal of financial assets  HERARNBEF ABHZ SR EE
at fair value through profit or loss FR1G IR 42,220 14,232
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BERAABETAEBERCEREE
through profit or loss (10,212) (32,548)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 B ¥73 « #28 &35 (1,479) (1,676)
Proceed from disposal of property, HEWE  HeE RBEISHE
plant and equipment - 16
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) BREEEME (FA)RLFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 31,935 (12,488)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
Interest on lease liabilities paid EfEEAENE (21) (38)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEEEE (836) (2,208)
Proceed from exercised of share option ITE B ERTS A 1,302 =
Proceeds from issue of bonds BITESFBNRIE 6,000 -
Placing of new shares fo & ¥ - 5,401
NET CASH GENERATED FROM METHAEREFHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 6,445 3,155
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERREEENRL FHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (12,406) (52,054)
Cash and cash equivalents at RENZBRERBREEED
beginning of year 52,105 106,054
Effect on foreign exchange fEERBE 8
rate changes (2,539) (1,895)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REKXKZBRERESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 37,160 52,105
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
Il‘/-.R (= /jﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁ-

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE=-F = —#F+=-H=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company are listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in
(i) travel media operations with provision of advertising
services through the internet and travel magazines, event
organising services and magazine publication; (ii) provision
of contents and advertising services in a well known
financial magazine; (iii) investment in securities; (iv) virtual
reality business; and (v) money lending.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$'000) unless otherwise indicated.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the Group's
financial performance and position for the current
and prior years and/or the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7.|- i% #&%E Bﬁ- -LI

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERHI BB B HREER
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ( FE%EM%#&%-%,JJJ ) B 18
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued RIS — &

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but (b EEMBEMKRERZTHITE
not yet effective: 7B | EER RIEFT A
The Group has not only applied the following new and REBUWERFZERBIATEHEM
amendment to HKFRS, that have been issued but not BEARER AT AP ERE
effective: R RABET AR
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related RAETBREER Ri&HRIEHE

Amendments? F175 EHK
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual BREMBREER BaHERSI A
Framework? FEIRZ BRI A
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BB RE &R REFHEAKRE
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its E10RRBEB G DEHAED
Associate or Joint Venture? RAEBKEBITR EZHNEE
HEg T E
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions BAETHEIREED —E--FR
beyond 30 June 2021 F16% 2B K H_‘|‘E1§iz
2019 MR E
mEEABR
ERE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BEEQHENE IR BEEVEAR
Current or Non-current and CHES EEEREIN
related amendments to Hong Kong BERBEST
Interpretation 5 (2020)° (Z2-%F)
ZHEBED
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies® BREGHEAZIRR SHBERE
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 RAETBREER
EBREEIRL
BETAR
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’ BREEERFESF . GHMHZIER
BETA
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and EBESHENENR . E-RFEEM
Liabilities arising from a Single EHIEN BERBEN
Transaction? R R R 18
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — B ERE IR WE BERK
Proceeds before Intended Use? & ;JZIK E-BTH%
Al 2 B3 70082
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling BREHEUER BEUSH-E
a Contract? EHEN T8 KRR A2
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BRMBREENz BEMBREE
2018-2020? BEIAR A-Z-NF
2_E_F
2 FEN#?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective: - Continued

1

2

3

4

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

(i)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The amendment introduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to assess
whether a Covid-19-related rent concession is a
lease modification. The practical expedient only
applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the
following conditions:

—  the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

— any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022; and

— there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

80

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective: - Continued

(i) Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related

Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 —
Continued

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes
are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver
of lease payments are accounted for as variable
lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived
with a corresponding adjustment recognised in
the profit or loss in the period in which the event
occurs.

The application is not expected to have impact on
the Group’s financial position and performance as
the Group does not intend to apply the practical
expedient.

(ii) Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the

Conceptual Framework
The amendments:

— update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations so that it refer s to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) instead of Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2010
issued in October 2010);

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective: - Continued

(i) Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework — Continued

add a requirement that, for transactions
and other events within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination; and

add an explicit statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets acquired
in a business combination.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively
to business combinations for which the date of
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERFITIEAMBREER
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ([BERAMBHREEDN]) BB
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued HIE

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but (b) EEMEHMKERZFHITE
not yet effective: — Continued BB REENRERT R -
F]

(iii) Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (iii) &E B FE#HEERIFE 10

82

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures deal with situations
where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. Specifically, the amendments state that
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control
of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in
a transaction with an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains
and losses resulting from the remeasurement of
investments retained in any former subsidiary (that
has become an associate or a joint venture that
is accounted for using the equity method) to fair
value are recognised in the former parent’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE=-F = —#F+=-H=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective: - Continued

(iv) Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as
current or non-current, which:

- specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected
by management intentions or expectations
to settle the liability within 12 months;
and

(ii) if the right is conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the right
exists if the conditions are met at the end
of the reporting period, even if the lender
does not test compliance until a later
date; and

—  clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately
as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

84

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective: - Continued

(iv) Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) — Continued

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was
revised as a consequence of the Amendments to
HKAS 1 to align the corresponding wordings with
no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as
at 31 December 2021, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification of
the Group’s liabilities.

(v) Amendments to HKFRSs Annual

Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020

The annual improvements make amendments to
the following standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose
of assessing whether modification of terms of
original financial liability constitutes substantial
modification under the “10 per cent” test, a
borrower includes only fees paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the borrower or the
lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16 removes from the
example the illustration of reimbursement relating
to leasehold improvements by the lessor in order
to remove any potential confusion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE=-F = —#F+=-H=+—HIFE

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Continued

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective: - Continued

(v) Amendments to HKFRSs Annual

Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 —
Continued

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the
requirements in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
by removing the requirement in paragraph 22 of
HKAS 41 to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using

a present value technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position

and performance of the Group.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by

HKICPA. In addition,

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

3. REUBBRZEHEER
TESTBE-&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

All amounts are presented in Hong Kong dollar
thousands (“HK$’000”) in these consolidated financial
statements, unless otherwise stated.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. e ERRZFEEREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHHRE-&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

(@) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial (@ HREVBRREEEE—
statements — Continued ®

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assets takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level T,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

— Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

—  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

—  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

3. REUBBRZEHEER
TESTBE-&

(b) REEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

-~ has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(b) Basis of consolidation — Continued

(c)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1
January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the acquisition
date is before 1 January 2005 represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January
2001 continues to be held in reserves, and will be
transferred to the retained earnings at the time when
the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed
of or when a cash-generated unit (“CGU") to which the
goodwill relates becomes impaired.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on
acquisitions of new assets and operations of another
entity after 1 January 2001, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and
such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the CGU unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired (see the
accounting policy below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

3. REUBBRZEHEER
TESTBE-&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January
2005 was recognised as an asset and initially measured
at cost, being the excess of the cost of the acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the Group’s
interest in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess was
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s CGUs (or group of
CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

e ERRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(c)

(d)

Goodwill - Continued

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1
January 2005 — Continued

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU
within the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes
of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a
group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of
is measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of
the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Depreciation is recognised
so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvement Shorter of remaining

lease term

or 3-5 years

Furniture and fixture 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment and software 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(d) Property, plant and equipment — Continued

92

(e)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(e) Leases — Continued

Definition of a lease — Continued
The Group as a lessee — Continued
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

—  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

— any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

— an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. B BRZGFEHREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHBEEX -8
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(e) HE—-&

(e) Leases — Continued

94

Definition of a lease — Continued
The Group as a lessee — Continued
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group REERBBES NEEKZAB
recognises and measures the lease liability at the AR N EE SRR ERER R

present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:
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—  the lease term has changed or there is a change in - THHRBENEETEEERE
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in M BEE RIEBERT:

which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

— the lease payments change due to changes
in which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. e BHBRZ2GREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FESHHREKX-E&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
(f) Impairment of property, plant and equipment f MHE - EERRBURERS

and right-of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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3. REUBBRZEHEER
TESTBE-&

) M= EERREBEUKEA

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(f) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

and right-of-use assets other than goodwill -
Continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of CGU, with the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group
of CGUs) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of
CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. B BRZGFEHREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHBEK-&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(g €T A

(g) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for account receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. ZREMERRZFEHEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTEETHRE-&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
(g) Financial instruments — Continued (g EMMIT A&

Financial assets T E A E

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial TRMEE DENMHEERE
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

Fa TR E/MEERLRE

subsequently measured at amortised cost: BIHEKANGTE

— the financial asset is held within a business model - REEDUEHNR/KIE
whose objective is to collect contractual cash WETRENEKEEAF
flows; and g K

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates - ARBRFRNEERHELD

Rens8MRRINEER
REBXSHONE -

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

PrEEtEMEERRIRANE
AT E - TIERMER
TREENDBEABIELE:

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
PVFPL. A financial asset is held for sales if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of - BAZEOFE2EARIOHL
selling in the near term; or -

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

- RSP HIABBRAEEE
BEEZE#MNE T AA
BZ—®My YBRKRELABA
RHERN 2 BRELN X

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective - BYIHEETRBBRERETD
as a hedging instrument. TAZUTETA-

Itk AN+ 7 5 [ AT S A A 2R
REBHEKATEZEREERT

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost as measured at FVTPL if doing REAREFABEZETE (Wt
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting Br BRI BEEZR D GTHRACE
mismatch. S e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
(g) Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets — Continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets — Continued

(i) Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

(ii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other
income and other net (losses)/gains” line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. B BRZFEHEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHBEEX -8
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(g EMIA-&

(g) Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets — Continued

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including accounts and other receivables, loan
receivables, and bank balances) which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at the end of each reporting period to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
end of the reporting period as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivables without significant financing component.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Company measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognizes
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
(g) Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets — Continued
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 — Continued

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the end of the reporting
period with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition.

In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

(@) an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

(b) significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

(c) existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

(d) an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; or

(e) an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
(g) Financial instruments — Continued
Financial assets — Continued
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 — Continued

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk — Continued
I[rrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default
The Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
(g) Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets — Continued
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 — Continued

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of accounts receivable, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group uses a
practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade and
bills receivables using a provision matrix taking
into consideration historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
(g) Financial instruments — Continued
Financial assets — Continued
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 — Continued

104

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL — Continued

Lifetime ECL for certain accounts receivable
and loan receivables are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

—  Past-due status;

—  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

—  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of accounts receivable and loan receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognized
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. e ERRZFEEREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHHRE-&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

(g) Financial instruments — Continued

@ SWMIE—&

Financial assets — Continued

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other
financial assets or the Group has the sole discretion
to defer payment of distribution and redemption of
principal amount indefinitely are classified as equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(g)

(h)

106

Financial instruments — Continued

Financial liabilities and equity — Continued
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts payables,
accruals and other payables, bond payable and lease
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized
and the consideration paid and payable is recognized
in profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same. Control is transferred
over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

— the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. B BRZGFEHREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHBEK-&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(h) EFEN k=&

(h) Revenue from contracts with customers -

Continued

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for
those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent). The Group is a
principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.
The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified good or
service by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified good or service provided
by another party before that good or service is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF
3. GANBEEZFREER
TESTBE-&

(i) EE®EA
(i) *2HjIER 15

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
(i) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benetfits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

(ii) Retirement benefit obligations

The Group contributes to a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
relevant income and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contribution
to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to
the MPF Scheme vest immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. B BRZGFEHREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHBEK-&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(i) EEEAN-&

(i) Employee benefits — Continued
(i) Retirement benefit obligations — Continued (i) RIKBFIEEF—#&

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
which operate in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of
its payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed in the central
pension scheme The Group has no forfeiture of
pension scheme contributions (i.e. Contributions
processed by the employer on behalf of the
employee who has exited the scheme prior to
vesting of such contributions). As at 31 December
2021, no forfeited contribution under the pension
scheme of the Group is available for deduction of
contribution payable in coming years.

(iii) Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. B BRZGFEHREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHBEEX -8
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(i) EEERN-&

(i) Employee benefits — Continued
(iii) Equity-settled share-based payment (iif) B 748 B LA R 17 45 B R

110

transactions — Continued

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of
the share options is expensed immediately to profit
or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
be retained in the share options reserve.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

ARG &
REHBEHEENRAEE
AR D mERZ R R
B (T RABIFTEFRB
i)  RBEAKE MGG &
REBNBRATAREBS
NIRBERE - iz (B
Pergfstf) B & M EIE A0 - 0
EHREMR NEEREY
PREMBEIET 5 R E RIT 2
A ERTEYBHRE 2
AT AZB R EEr-1E5F]
REGBANEE (AR
BHEAER UERFAHAX
REBREERT A W HBR
BFBELHEEAR AR
X B RN B 2 AR
mE  BREZ QR EE
ISEERSE

BREETER TAMRE
PREEERER SR ER
E D B - IR E R R
B RO Wk i i B D
REIT B R ST AT R AR A
faé 48 R RERR BV BUER S AR BB IR
B -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. e ERRZFEEREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHHRE-&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

(j) Taxation () BiE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. B BRZFEHEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHBEEX -8
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

) BE-&

(j) Taxation — Continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

()

(k)

(M

Taxation — Continued

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax
treatments, the Group considers whether it is probable
that the relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain
tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by individual
group entities in their income tax filings. If it is
probable, the current and deferred taxes are determined
consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax
filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either
the most likely amount or the expected value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group
must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —FE = —F+=-H=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. B BRZFEHEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHHRE-&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(m) Fh&

(m) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognized
directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognized
directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(m) Foreign currencies — Continued

(n)

(0)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income and other net gain”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. R BHRERZ2FEHREER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FTESHBRE-E&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(p) Contingent liabilities (g HAREE

Contingent assets

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other
unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an
inflow of economic benefits to the Group and they are
not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
The Group assesses continually the development of
contingent assets. If it has become virtually certain
that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
Group recognizes the asset and the related income in
the consolidated financial statements in the reporting
period in which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising
from past events but is not recognised because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected
to be met by other parties is treated as a contingent
liability and it is not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
has become probable. If it becomes probable that an
outflow of future economic benefits will be required for
an item previously dealt with as a contingent liability,
a provision is recognized in the consolidated financial
statements in the reporting period in which the change
in probability occurs, expect in the extremely rare
circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. e ERRZFEEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

(g) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - Continued

Estimated impairment of goodwill and goodwill
reserve

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU (or a group of
CGUs) and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash flows
or upward revision of discount rate, a material impairment
loss or further impairment loss may arise. Furthermore, the
estimated cash flows and discount rate are subject to higher
degree of estimation uncertainties in the current year due to
uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve and volatility in financial markets, including
potential disruptions of the Group’s operations.

Provision of ECL for accounts, loan and other
receivables

Accounts, loan and other receivables with significant
balances and credit-impaired are assessed for ECL
individually. In addition, the Group uses practical expedient
in estimating ECL on accounts, loan and other receivables
which are not assessed individually using a provision matrix.
The provision rates are based on aging of debtors/others
as groupings of various debtors taking into consideration
the Group’s historical default rates and forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered by the
Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has increased the expected
loss rates in the current year as there is higher risk that a
prolonged pandemic could led to increased credit default
rates.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

5.

An analysis of the Group revenue is as follows:

ECE - —Ff A=+ —HIFE

X
REENEEBEHTMT

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—-BLEE

2021 2020
—E_—— TE-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

Revenue From contracts with customers: BFFAHWE:
Travel media PR 4% 45 2% 14,964 22,211
Financial magazine L PR S 45,810 17,162
Virtual reality ERIRE 1,789 263
62,563 39,636

Revenue from other sources: HARR Z W s :

Interest income B U A 1,100 1,514
63,663 41,150

Timing of revenue recognition: W 355 e R B
A point in time RE—RE 62,563 39,636

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Revenue from travel media

Revenue from travel media includes income from
management fees, registration and exhibitor fees on various
events and conferences organised by the Group. The
revenue was recognised upon completion of the events
and conferences. Income from the provision of services
is recognised upon the provision of the relevant services
rendered and a full payment received in advance is normally
required before the services rendered which is classified
as contract liabilities and the remaining performance
obligations are expected to recognised as revenue within a

year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

REVENUE - Continued

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below: — Continued
Revenue from financial magazine

Revenue from Service fee income from the provision of
contents and advertising services in multiple well-known
financial magazine distributed in the People’s Republic of
China (“the PRC”). Income from the provision of services
is recognised upon the provision of the relevant services
rendered.

Revenue from virtual reality business
Income from the provision of services is recognised upon
the provision of the relevant services rendered.

Revenue from other source

Interest income arising from money-lending
business

Loan interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the executive directors, the chief
operating decision-maker, that are used to make strategic
decisions.

The Group has five reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

(i) Engaged in travel media operations with provision of
advertising services through the internet and travel
magazines, event organizing services and magazine
publication (“Travel Media Business”);

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

OPERATING SEGMENTS - Continued

(i) Provision of contents and advertising services in
multiple well-known financial magazines distributed
in the PRC (“Financial Magazine and Other Media
Business”);

(iii) Investment in securities (“Securities Investment);

(iv) Money lending business provides funds to clients
and receives loan interest income in return (“Money
Lending”); and

(v) Virtual reality business (the “Virtual Reality”).

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are priced with reference
to prices charged to external parties for similar products or
services. Corporate revenue and expenses are not allocated
to the operating segments as they are not included in
the measure of the segments’ results that is used by the
chief operating decision-maker for assessment of segment
performance.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s chief
operating decision-maker monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current assets
with the exception of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, cash and bank balances and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities managed
directly by the segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7.|- ﬁ% #&% Bﬁ- -LI

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —FE = —F+=-H=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS - Continued 6. REDH—&
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable H&ﬁ?&&%ﬁﬁﬁ%%x—J#&%ﬁﬁWﬁE
segments with reference to sales generated by those EZHERRFEXD *ﬁfﬁ”* :
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments HEEETHRX ¢¥§$@ﬂi
without allocation of corporate administrative expenses, EFNBWARIERBEITTS @E
corporate directors’ emoluments, corporate interest income DEEEBR IR E R HE—
and income tax expense. Segment results include all 5 EBA 5 — 50 EBHe e 5 MR RS
revenue and expenses, other than reporting inter-segment (LB )BRINo

provided by one segment to another, if any.

(a) Segment revenues and results (@ PHEXERXE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue AEBRBFHERLEEK 2 W a
and results from continuing operations by reportable NEBRAREDFITOT
segments:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E-_—-F+=HA=+-—H
I E
Financial
Magazine
and Other
Travel Media Media Securities Money Virtual
Business Business  Investment Lending Reality Total
MEEER
RERE Hitjg e
5% 5% EERE HiE ERRE st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER FER FER TER FER

Reportable segment revenue RENBEFZ

from external customers ARESDEERE 14,964 45,810 = 1,100 1,789 63,663

Reportable segment profit/(loss) & 5
wH/ (B8) 2,530 7,256 9,062 (685) (10,127) 8,036

Amounts included in the measure FF AP BT

of segment profit or loss or DBEEHER

segment assets: RETHE:
Depreciation e = (720) = (116) (473) (1,309)
Reversal of impairment losses JE W BR 51 2 LB

on accounts receivables BREkE = 6,926 = = = 6,926
Impairment loss on other HinEWHIELZ

receivables REER - 4 - - (546) (542)
Impairment losses on EWER 2 AEER

loan receivables S S S (695) S (695)
Impairment losses on EREEEZ

right-of-use assets REEE (489) - - - - (489)
Reportable segment assets RENHEE 36,411 46,203 29,475 11,434 17,879 141,402

Additions to non-current assets:  JERE)E ELE AN«
~ Property, plant and equipment  —¥13 - B2 R - - - - 1,479 1,479

Reportable segment liabilities ARESBEE (3,745) (4,384) (52) (1,001) (896) (10,078)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE=-F = —#F+=-H=+—HIFE

RESH—&
(@ THERBERRE-E

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS - Continued 6.
(@) Segment revenues and results — Continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-ZE-_ZTFt+=-A=+-—H
ILEE
Financial
Magazine
and Other
Travel Media Media Securities Money Virtual
Business Business  Investment Lending Reality Total
R R
RERE W HbRE
E3) E3) FHRE g ERRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment revenue REIMBEFZ
from external customers HREDHEXR 22,211 17,162 - 1,514 263 41,150
Reportable segment profit/(losses) A 3% 2 & Fl,/
(B8) (3,955) (15,477) (3,418) (1,268) (543) (24,661)
Amounts included in the measure 5t A% #fI8 & 5
of segment profit or loss or DBEEFEN
segment assets: RESH:
Depreciation e (1,638) = = = (101) (1,739)
Impairment losses on Eth IR L
other receivables REEE = (38) = = = (38)
Impairment losses on EWER 2 AEEE
loan receivables = = = (1,125) (1,125)
Impairment losses on FE U BR 7 2 LB 1R
accounts receivables (137) (19,376) s = = (19,513)
Impairment losses on property, Y15 #ERFEEH 2
plant and equipment REEE (212) = = = = (212)
Impairment losses on EREEEZ
right-of-use assets REERE (199) = = = = (199)
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 40,093 26,251 46,074 10,847 1,530 124,795
Additions to non-current assets:  FEREN A EE I :
- Property, plant and equipment  —¥1%  #E R FE - - - - 1,403 1,403
Reportable segment liabilities REHHEE 8,082 30,308 - 2,037 1,039 41,466
PEERREERFRAE T FFHR 123



6. OPERATING SEGMENTS - Continued
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and liabilities:

(b) Reconciliation of segment profit or loss, assets

6. KETH—&

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘/-ﬁ 7.|- ﬁ% #&% Bﬁ- -LI

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

(b) PHEH BEREBEZYH

BE :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECFF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FHETT
Revenue EER
Reportable segment revenue ARG D AR 63,663 41,150
Profit or loss B
Reportable segment profit/(losses) AHESE RN, (EE) 8,389 (24,661)
Unallocated corporate income AOBRERA 8,142 8,832
Unallocated corporate expenses FAOBROERK (38,910) (13,236)
Consolidated losses before taxation G T ] (22,379) (29,065)
Assets EE
Segment assets DEEE 141,402 124,795
Unallocated corporate assets RO EEE 13,282 78,155
Consolidated assets RAEEE 154,684 202,950
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities DEEE 10,078 41,466
Unallocated corporate liabilities AoREEEE 10,059 4,874
Consolidated liabilities meEAaE 20,137 46,340
Sino Splendid Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS - Continued
(c) Geographic information
The Group’s operations and workforce are mainly
located in Singapore and Hong Kong. Information about
the Group’s revenue from continuing operations from
external customers is presented based on the location
of the operations. Information about the Group’s non-
current assets is presented based on the geographical
location of the asset. The following table provides
an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external

6. REE—1E
() WEEH
AEEYEBRETI T BN
I % E o 5 B AN W A Sh
BES 25 EE S EH KRG
BRI IR G S 2 25 - 5 B
AEBIERSEEZERTRE
BEZIWEBAE 25 F&#35
AEERANBES 2 LEES
i

customers.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$7000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Singapore I3 14,964 21,913
Hong Kong e 46,910 18,974
PRC allE 1,789 263
63,663 41,150

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
non-current assets.

TREINAKEFRRBEE 2D

A7 o

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-BA=+—HLFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$000

FHET FET

Singapore I3 - =
Hong Kong £ 10,747 53,493
PRC H 1,065 1,403
11,812 54,896

(d) Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted
for 24% (2020: 13%) of the Group’s total revenue
and aggregate revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 52% (2020:

30%) of the Group’s total revenue.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS - Continued 6.
(d) Information about major customers —

2021 2020
—B--F C—EF-ETF
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET
Customer A — Financial magazine and &7 F — B &8558
other media business (note) HmEBER (#i7) - 5,292
Customer B — Financial magazine and &P 2 — &K
other media business (note) HMiEeesrs (i) 15,610 -
note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over Wit FEBNEREEXEITREAEE
10% of the total revenue of the Group. BEHEENI0% °
7. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET GAINS/ 7. Bt AR E bz (&
(LOSSES) B)FE

126
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

Continued

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group

are as follows:

REeDH-&

d) EEFEFZEN-&

EASEBESEBERI0%NEP
RBEEFERERNERBENT:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLHFE

2021 2020
—EB=-—fF —EETF
HK$7000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank interest income IRITHF B U A 3 5
Dividend income from financial assets BAREFABRLZ
at FVTPL TREEE 2 IRB WA 1,403 7,483
Other income H Al A 416 402
Government grant (note) BB (A1) 7,586 4,472
Gain on termination of lease wIEHRE 2 W = 85
Realised gain/(loss) on financial assets at A REF AB=EZ
FVTPL TRMEEZEEHE
Was, (E18) 4,052 (77)
Fair value changes on financial assets BRAREFABRZ
at FVTPL TREEZANEZD (8,797) (2,280)
4,663 10,090

note:

During the current year, the Group recognised government grant
of approximately HK7,586,000 (2020: HK$4,472,000) in respect
of COVID-19 related subsidies, of which approximately NIL (2020:
HK$206,000) relates to Employment Support Scheme provided by

the Government.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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10.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED

CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

8.

EAHEEEBEEX TRES
B HIBREE
Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLHFE

2021 2020
—B-—-F —ZT-ZTF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET
Impairment losses (recognised)/reversal on: LA T &IEZ (EREREE
B) RERERD:
— Accounts receivables — EWBR K 6,926 (19,513)
— Loan receivables —EWE = (695) (1,125)
— Other receivables — H fib B W SR TE (542) (38)
5,689 (20,676)
FINANCE COSTS 9. &M
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
—E=-—F —ETF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Interest on bond payable N ERHZHE 180 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBZHE 21 202
201 202
INCOME TAX CREDIT 10. T8 HIE R
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t—HLEE
2021 2020
—E=-—F —EFTF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Current tax: BOHAFR I8 -
- Hong Kong — & - (243)
— Singapore — ¥ - 65
Tax overprovision (Note) MIRRRR R (Hat) 249 5,646
Deferred tax R RE TR IA - -
Income tax credit FEHREE 249 5,468
—T-—FFFR 127
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT - Continued

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The calculation of current tax of the Group” s subsidiaries in
Singapore is based on a prevailing corporate tax rate of 17%
(2020: 17%).

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
purchased tax reserve certificates amounting to approximately
HK$3,290,000 arising from the Tax Affairs with the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department (the “HKIRD”). On 16 March 2021,
the HKIRD issued the final years assessment that it would refund
approximately HK$4,779,000 to the Company.

10. TEBiER &

BEFMSHMAH cEREE TR
7 & 2,000,000 7T % A 1 428.25% i
R #B1B2,000,0007% 7T 26 9 B9
FAEE16.5% BB - THFENESHW
RAEIERNEEERN NG EER
16.5% 2 & — Bl B -

AN ER B RO FT hN IR 2 BB X B e B A A
BAIREBRITRABREI7% (ZF =
BEFE17%)HH-

REE 2 FERIERRGABRRH
ftb 2 T M 25 % B 518 B AT A6 98 2 1R
T

REBEZE-_FE-_FTEF+_A=+—HLHF
B ARARRBREEERNEAREEEE
I #5493,290,0008 - R =-—F =
A+ B BEBHERBRELFERE &
o B AR H S A R A B R B 494,779,000
5

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2021 2020
—E-— —E-ETEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Loss before taxation M B AT B 1B (22,379) (29,065)
Tax at Singapore flat corporate tax rate of  IZFHT I A — R E17%
17% (2020: 17%) —EFF17%)
B DA (3,804) (4,941)
Effect of different tax rate of operation EREEBTIRAMRZZE
in Hong Kong 10 80
Tax effect of income not taxable DERMBAZRIEZE (2,055) (1,970)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses NAIFUR R X 2 G & 5,849 6,653
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERBAIHRERFEREZ
differences not recognised MR E - S
Tax overprovision in prior year B FE NI 249 5,646
Income tax credit Frig i & 249 5,468
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE=-F = —#F+=-H=+—HIFE

11.LOSS FOR THE YEAR M. FRER
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/ FRABEREME, (FEA) THIHIE:
(crediting):
(a) Staff costs (@ BEIEAX

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLEE

2021 2020
—F--F ZTZTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIRA (B
remuneration): BEEME) -
— Salaries, allowances and —Fe FUMEEDI S
benefits in kind 16,219 18,588
— Contributions to defined —REHRTEKRE
contribution pension plans FHEIHR 1,153 2,216
— Equity-settled share-based —RAEEEHZRAER
payment expenses for employee ARt AR B 2
R 1,277 474
18,649 21,278
For the year ended 31 December 2021, COVID-19 BHE_T-_—F+-A=+—H
related government grants/assistance amounted to IHFE WE2019BRESHE
approximately Nil (2020: HK$206,000) have been EAEBBTHE B (==
offset against employee benefits expense. T :49206,000/ 7T) AR HE
BEBAMAX -
(b) Other items (b) HiL1HE
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—-BLFE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET T
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE & 410 410
Depreciation of property, ME - HBELREBITE
plant and equipment 589 442
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 720 2,182
Cost of inventories sold EERFERAR 569 -
Expenses to short-term lease FEEAEMEER X 683 431
Net foreign exchange gain bE 5 I 5 % BR (56) (927)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —FE = —F+=-H=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS 12. EE 5
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant RIEGEM Em R A M FE (R A F
to the GEM Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies BI) RE - FREEZFHMRELT :
Ordinance, is as follows:
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to defined
and benefits Share based Directors contribution
in kind payment fee  pension plans Total
ﬁ‘}E{/\T}\
¥e RER IR A BiR&:E
VA S ER 2R kA #"% @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FET FHET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2021 EHE-Z=- if—
= H +-
LLFE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chow Chi Wa (Resigned AHEERE (R
on 19 November 2021) ZEZ-F+-A
+THBET) 1,392 s 110 165 1,667
Mr. Yang Xingan BRZRE - - 240 - 240
Mr. Wang Tao IREEE - - 120 - 120
1,392 - 470 165 2,027
Independent non-executive BUHHITEE
directors
Mr. Wang Qingling TERRL 120 - - - 120
Mr. Yang Shuyan BRER L 120 - - S 120
Mr. Lee Yim Wah FHELL 120 - - - 120
360 - - - 360
1,752 - 470 165 2,387
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-Z_ZF
tZA=+-H
LEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chow Chi Wa AEERE 1,360 116 120 18 1,614
Mr. Yang Xingan BRZ%E - 116 240 S 356
Mr. Wang Tao IEEE - 116 120 = 236
1,360 348 480 18 2,206
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
Mr. Wang Qingling FERTL - - 120 - 120
Mr. Yang Shuyan BREAR L - - 120 - 120
Mr. Lee Yim Wah FURELL - - 120 - 120
. - 360 - 360
1,360 348 840 18 2,566
During both years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, BHE_ZT_—FRk_ZT_FTF+_H
no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors, =T HIEMEFE ~AEEHER
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group as EEXNMEERMAREE AN
compensation for loss of office. N&EZ REVSAERBEBAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

12. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS - Continued NEEFM-&
There was no arrangement under which a director or chief FRN BEFHEFTIRSTHAER
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration WEXFEBHNEEMME T HE-
during the year.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no share option BE_T_—F+_-_A=+—HL
of the Company was granted to the directors in respect of FE HBERBEAARBRETEH®
their services provided to the Group under a share option EERAKBERUZIRBEAEHEE
scheme of the Company (2020: 11,574,600 of share option). EREARABRE(ZZE_ZF:
11,574,60017 BB A 42) -
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for FXATATEZTZME IR KEE
their services in connection with the management of the BARARANEEBEHARHR 2 RS
affairs of the Company and the Group. S o
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments EXFARBYIFATEST ZME o5
shown above were for their services as directors of the REEERRTEFIRMEZ R
Company. X fife
13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES B.LERSHFHES
The five highest paid employees of the Group included one FRN AEELEGESFMEES BE
(2020: one) director for the year, whose remunerations are — R (T _TF —R)EF HF
included in note 12 above. Details of the remuneration for BHEL S B P EE12 - FASBTHEE (=
the year remaining four (2020: four) highest paid employees T_TF - MHA)ESFMES (W
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the ARBEFTHRSITERAR) B H M
Company are set out below: BT
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
— -5 C—IT-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  ¥% - 2B R EWMHZ 4,209 3,808
Contributions to defined contribution REHRFORIK ST EIER
pension plans 270 388
4,479 4,196
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES - Continued 13.ER2ESHMESE —&

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the FERRAREZNHZSFTMEEHMN
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within FATEHRENABDAT -
the following bands is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
Number of Number of

employees employees

EEAH BE A

NIL to HK$1,000,000 T ILE1,000,0008 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L ZE1,500,00075 7T - 1

4 4
During both years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no BE_ZT_—FR_Z_FTF+_H
remuneration were paid by the Group to the five highest =T HIEMEFE ~AEELHER
paid employees, as an inducement to join or upon joining EEESFMEEXNMESIER/MA
the Group as compensation for loss of office. REBERMAEZ REN S AERBER A

& -
The remuneration of one (2020: one) senior management — & (ZZE_ZTF —B)aREBEA
personnel has been disclosed in the above table of the five B2HME RN EXEMO R K
highest paid employees. BEZRIBAWE -
14. DIVIDENDS 14. R 2

The board of directors does not recommend payment of any EESRRITTREBE_T_—F
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). ‘f’ )EJ ‘|‘ Eﬁifﬁ'ﬂfﬂﬂﬁ (=
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

15.LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

15.BREE

RRBFBBEARGERERNLEEE
BIRE N BURRT &

Year ended 31 December

BE+-RA=1T—-HLHFE

2021 2020
—F--F ZTZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Loss per share BREE
Loss for the purpose of basic stet per share Ftat B SRERNEIE BB (22,130) (23,597)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEEELBRMHFTE:
Adjustment for share option SBREEL AR - —
Loss for the purpose of diluted loss A ESREEERZ
per share B8 (22,130) (23,597)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—-HLEE
2021 2020
—E=-—F —ETFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Number of share RO E
Weighted average number of ordinary A ESRERERZ
shares in issue for the purpose of BT EBRINE T8
basis loss per share 469,390 422,714
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: EfE#8 LM MFTE -
— Share option — BB - =
Weighted average number of ordinary A ESREEERL
shares in issue for the purpose of EETEBRINE B
diluted loss per share 469,390 422,714

There were 50,156,600 of outstanding share options as at
31 December 2021 (2020: 27,007,400).

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of Company’s options because the exercise
price of those options was higher than the average market
price for shares for both 2021 and 2020

RESRRE R AR

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—HB ' #H*k
1718 2 B # 550,156,600 (==
ZEH:27,007,40010) °

EEREEEBETERSRAQR
ZEREENTE RRRZSEBIRE
ZIIFEEESR_TE-_—FEKR_T_-F
FRMHZFHME-



16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - B RZ 1B
Computers
Leasehold Furniture Office equipment Motor
improvement and fixture equipment  and software vehicles Total
ERRE
HEWELEE HBRAREE  BAERE RE# RE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT FAET FAET FAT
Cost D%
At 1 January 2020 WZZ-ZF-A—-H 1,141 637 796 1,195 809 4,578
Additions AE 108 14 1,450 104 S 1,676
Written off/Disposal e/ e (1,109) (84) (259) - - (1,452)
Exchange realignment %A E 27) M 65 68 = 105
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZFE+-A=+-H
and 1 January 2021 k-2-_-%-A—H 113 566 2,052 1,367 809 4,907
Additions NE - - 5 1,474 S 1,479
Written off/Disposal W/ e - - - - - -
Exchange realignment ERRE (1) > 9 (45) = (37)
As at 31 December 2021  R=B=—-5+Zf=+-H 112 566 2,066 2,796 809 6,349
Accumulated depreciation ~ R E
At 1 January 2020 R-E-T5-f—-8 1,141 437 674 1,066 809 4,127
Charge for the year FRX M 3 111 198 130 - 442
Written off/disposal W/ e (1,109) (84) (235) - = (1,428)
Impairment HE 110 - 19 83 = 212
Exchange realignment BN AR (32) 2) 1 68 - 35
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZE+-A=+-H
and 1 January 2021 rR-—Z-_—F¥—A—H 113 462 657 1,347 809 3,388
Charge for the year FRXH - 92 345 152 - 589
Exchange realignment i 58 (1M = 18 (46) = 29)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%+-A=t-H 112 554 1,020 1,453 809 3,948
Net book value BHFE
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--§+=-A=1+-H = 12 1,046 1,343 = 2,401
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZF-ZEF+-A=+—-H = 104 1,395 20 = 1,519
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE=-F = —#F+=-H=+—HIFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17.EREEE
Leased Office
properties equipment Total
HEME WARE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET
Cost: A
At 1 January 2020 W-_ZE-_T&—-A-A 8,590 348 8,938
Terminator of lease BIERE (7,048) = (7,048)
Exchange realignment BE 5 82 (184) 1 (183)
At 31 December 2020 and RZBZZEF+A=+—HBK
1 January 2021 —E-—%—H—H 1,358 349 1,707
Addition NE 509 = 509
Exchange realignment B 5 5 2 17 4) 13
At 31 December 2021 R=-B--%+-A=+-H 1,884 345 2,229
Accumulated depreciation Rt g
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-Z%—-HA—A 2,306 70 2,376
Depreciation charge TEER 2,104 78 2,182
Termination of lease BIEHE (3,683) - (3,683)
Impairment RE - 199 199
Exchange realignment B 5, 5 2 (48) 2 (46)
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZTF+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2021 r=ZF2=—4%—H—H 679 349 1,028
Depreciation charge TEER 720 = 720
Impairment HE 489 = 489
Exchange realignment 0 5 5 2 (4) (4) (8)
At 31 December 2021 R=-B=--%+-A=+-H 1,884 345 2,229
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-f5+=-A=+—-8H - - -
At 31 December 2020 R_F_FF+-_A=+—H 679 - 679
“EoEER 135
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z —FE = —F+=-H=+—HILFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - Continued

Expenses relating to short-term leases EEEEREER
Additions of right-of-use assets 15 A # & EE 8 hn

Total cash flow for leases

AREEZ RS RERE

17.CRAREE-&
Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—f —E-FF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
683 431
509 -
1,519 2,639

For both years, the Group leases various offices and office
equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 2 to 3 years (2020: 2 to 3 years).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

18. GOODWILL
Financial Magazine and Other Media Business
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit from
that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwiill
of approximately HK$5,161,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$5,161,000) was related to Financial Magazine

PREFE X&EEHE yﬂ%“*
R ARERAIEFE XKL E-TE
f%@&213¢<_ab_2ﬁ32§3¢>
WETEHRTY - HEKRFIZERE
R B S KBETREIGER LT -
P 7B E FH HA R BT A 1) RS B PR B
AEEEBAAONEETETAALA
HITHYHARR ©

18. HE
REFRHMEREER
F%f“ﬂﬂ&zﬁﬁZﬁ@EWﬁzﬁﬁﬁi“
MEBHERZEFEHRTELZR
CELEN - BER-_TE-_—F+=

=+ —H/MEHAEELS5,161,000%8
ﬁ(:7f§¢51mow%mh\

and Other Media Business, as further explained below. MRS REMERBEBER F15
i — ifﬁ LN
2021 2020
—E=--— —TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Cost B
At the beginning of year F 1 5,161 5,161
Accumulated impairment losses R REBRE - -
Net book value at the end of year FREEEFE 5,161 5,161
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18. GOODWILL - Continued

Financial Magazine and Other Media Business —
Continued

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, goodwill of
approximately HK$5,161,000 was arising from the
acquisition of Able Professional Enterprises Limited and its
subsidiary (the “Able Group”) in 2016. At each reporting
date, goodwill is subject to impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the CGU in relation to the
Financial Magazine and Other Media Business has been
determined using cash flow projections to calculate value
in use based on estimates and financial budgets approved
by the Directors of the Company. These projections cover a
five-year period, and have been discounted using a discount
rate of 13.24% (2020: 11.48%). Cash flow beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using growth rates of 3% (2020:
3%).

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in the
preparation of the cash flow projection including budgeted
gross margin, discount rate and growth rate which were
determined by the directors of the Company based on their
experience and expectation for future market development.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021,
directors of the Company determines that there is no
impairment on a the Able group.

The directors of the Company believe that any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying
amount of the unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of the CGU.

RESRRE R AR

FoE-_—FLf A=+ —HIFE

18 %Eﬁ nﬁ

MEMSREMERERE &

RZEZ—FR-E_FF+ A
=+—H8 BEH45,161,000%8 K E
RZZE—/NFUEE Able Professional
Enterprises Limited & £ [ff & 2 7]
(TAble £ ) -REFEBH BE
AEITRE G-

B KM R H MR %f’szﬁi
EABMNMAIKOSHEEREAD

%%Fﬁ}tt/&z1éiu+&ﬂ7rﬁﬁﬁ*éﬂﬁﬁfﬁ
EREBRIAAEFABEEE %F
TEANRE R FHE  WEFH13.24%
ZE T 11.48% ) 2 BHIR KR Bh
R-BARTFHREMNRESREFEAI%
(B -TF 3% )NIERREZ -

RERTRERMS R ZABRE
et (BRBEEMNX R K KIE
RR)DHARREZREELR N
BARRTHERZBHMERE -

BE_T_ZTERN_FT_—F+=
A=Z+—BLFE ARAEFET
Able £8 [E I # R {H

ARBEFRE TRES %EWMF
FTERBRZEMEGEARESH TG
BRESELE uzﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ_ﬂﬁtlﬁfﬁ
CELBUZANEASE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z - F - —#F+ _H=+—HIFZF

PROFIT OR LOSS

19. %ﬁﬁﬁ%‘f]\ﬁéz%@ﬁ

2021 2020
—F--F% C—T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets mandatorily BEIE QR EF ABR
measured at FVTPL: AEZERMEE:
Listed securities held for trading: FIEEE LTWES:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REE LT ZRAE S 26,539 20,005
Unlisted securities, at fair value FELETES B ANBEYE
— Equity interests in private equity funds - RAEREES
(“P-funds”) (LEEE]) i 4,250 47,537
30,789 67,542
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MRBmEBNSFAT :
Current assets MENEE 26,539 20,005
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,250 47,537
30,789 67,542

The listed securities held for trading are classified as current
as the management expects to realise these financial assets
with twelve months after the reporting period.

The details of fair value measurement are set out in note NI
34(b)(iv).
Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE=-F = —#F+=-H=+—HIFE

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES 20. EIRE X

The Group's loan receivables arose from the money lending
business during the year.

Loan receivables bear interest at fixed rates, and with
credit periods, mutually agreed between the contracting
parties. Loan receivables are unsecured. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly and handled closely by senior
management, if any.

FRA-AEEZREERKEMESE
%o

W E RIRE E M EG L EEHH
FTHY 77 KR E - EUWE SR/ AR o
Mg (NE ) HeREEEEH
i N R ) R B IR

2021 2020

—EB-—F —E-EF

HK$000 HK$000

FET FHEIT

Loans to customers BTEFHNER 11,000 11,000

11,000 11,000

Less: Allowance of credit losses BEEEERE (2,087) (1,392)

8,913 9,608

Analysed as: ST

Current assets MENE E 8,913 9,608

The loan receivables, net of allowance, at the end of the RI|REHR - BURE R (%R EE) %

reporting period are analysed by the remaining period to
contractual maturity date as follows:

BREHMBERZRHRHRITAOT

2021 2020

—E-— & TE-THF

HK$7000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within 3 months =EAR - -
3 months to 1 year “EAZE—F 8,913 9,608
8,913 9,608

The average effective interest rate was at 10% per year as at
31 December 2021 (2020: 10%).

Included in the carrying amount of loan receivables as
at 31 December 2021 is accumulated impairment losses
of HK$2,087,000 (2020: HK$1,392,000). Details of
impairment assessment are set out in note 34(b)(ii).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of the loan
receivables. The Group seeks to maintain tight control over
its loan receivables in order to minimize credit risk by
reviewing the borrowers’ or guarantors’ financial positions.

RESRRE R AR

R—EBE-_—F+=-_A=+—8" Tr
HEBREMEERBI0% (ZE-F
10%

—E-_—F+=-_RA=+—8"
ﬁ”&%%kzﬁﬁﬁ@@%%ﬁ)mﬁ
E1182,087,0008 L (ZE=F
1,392,000 7T) WA H 2 1B ﬁ
M FE34(b) (i) ©

F#&iﬁﬁﬂimﬁﬁ1mf§ﬂﬁﬁﬁgﬂﬁf§

FHEAE - AEEEBBEERA
YT)*{%)\E’JHM&W(/R BB RFEE
WE R BRI S A 12 B R B %
ExiKo

~—

o
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I
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21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

140

—Ff A=+ —AIEE

21. FE W BR R K% H ik & IR R IE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-EF
HK$7000 HK$000
FETT FET
Accounts receivables JE LS BR X 53,496 56,910
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEBEREE (22,909) (32,094)
30,587 24,816
Prepayments, deposits and BNFE ek

other receivables H h f& WK IE 39,430 41,558
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (593) (38)
38,837 41,520

Total accounts and other receivables e L B R R EL A e W B TR
BxE 69,424 66,336

The general credit period ranged from 30 days to 90 days,
extending up to 180 days for major customers.

The following is an aging analysis of accounts receivables,
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on the

invoice date:

—REEHNF30E90H HEETE
EPAIMIEEHRZ180H -

REXZAMZINEMNBREEHER
BN Z R

2021 2020

—E-—F —TE-THF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within 90 days 90H A 11,106 7,040
91-120 days 91-120H 7,722 671
121-180 days 121-180H 6,151 3,280
Over 180 days and within 360 days #8180 H 1B T #EE360H 5,608 3,011
Over 360 days HBiE360H = 10,814
30,587 24,816

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s accounts
receivables balance were debtors with aggregate gross
carrying amounts of approximately HK$11,370,000 (2020:
HK$6,349,000) which were neither past due nor impaired.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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EFoF - —FSI A= AUFE

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - 21, FE W AR 5K 2 L B WO R R —
Continued &
Included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables was FEVBEENNTEL(ZZE_F
approximately HK$nil (2020: HK$5,118,000) of tax reserve F 5,118,000 T ) R Fat AR E
certificate in relation to the Tax Affairs as disclosed in note TE A RRIE N H b e W R IE (RF B EE
10 and approximately HK$4,314,000 (2020: 26,039,000) of R EE10) & 44,314,000 T (= F
security accounts were included into deposits, prepayment —ZEF: 26,039,000/ T)IRE & T
and other receivables. AR FARIE R H A FE Y R IA
22. INVENTORIES 22. 7€
2021 2020
—EF--F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Finished goods BIK oo 600 -
Consumable tools BEMIEA 191 —
791 -
23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 2. BERBEEEEY
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range RITHERETIS A ERGFE XN
from 0.001% to 0.5% (2020: 0.001% to 0.5%). F0.001% & 0.5% (=T - ZTF:
0.001% £0.5%) °
As at 31 December 2021, bank balances and cash RZBE-_—F+_A=Z+—H 'R
amounting to approximately HK$5,673,000, HK$6,466,600 TRHB&RRE N R5,673,0008 7T
and HK$859,000 (2020: HK$24,435,000, HK$14,312,000 6,466,600/8 7T }2859,000/8 7T (= F
and HK$517,000) were denominated in United States ZZ4 124,435,000/ 7T * 14,312,000
dollars (“US$”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”) and Renminbi BT &517,00087T) * & Bl AZE JT
(“RMB”), respectively. g kAR EEHE -
Details of impairment assessment of bank balances and B RARTT A 8 R IR IR 1T 17 FORE FF
pledged bank deposits are set out in note 34(b)(ii). il B9 5 15 00 M 523 4(b) ().
FEERRRERBRLT —T-FFH 14
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

24. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, A BR AN % HL i B {4 7RO
2021 2020
—F-—F .
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Accounts payable (Note (a)) JEN BRI (H1aF(a)) 1,106 351
Accrued expenses FEET R X 9,032 24,428
Other payables H fth & 1~ ;K1 893 16,287
Contract liabilities (Note (b)) BRBEE(HEn)) 2,263 1,079
13,294 42,145
(@) Accounts payable (@) AR
The average credit period on purchase is generally REOHFHEED RN F455
ranged 45 to 90 days. 90H -
The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable BIBEZEZRHRBERRMET
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the ZENERZE®R ST

reporting period:

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FTHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHETT FET

Within 90 days 90BN 550 351

91-120 days 91-120H 556 -

1,106 351

(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHAE
Contract liabilities, that are not expected to be settled BHTER KB EEEERS
within the Group’s normal operating cycle, are NEENEHNEBERBAEEM
classified as current and non-current based on the EFEREMIRBNEKER
Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or services E-PBERRBEIERD-

to the customers
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24. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES - 24, BT BRA R H b FE S 7B —

Continued
(b) Contract liabilities — Continued

o

(b) ENEE-&

Movements in contract liabilities BREIEEE
2021 2020
—EB- & B
HK$7000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
At 1 January R—HA—H 1,079 4,181
Decrease in contract liabilities BHBEERRFARER
as a result of recognising revenue Yo 25 0m A
during the year (705) (4,084)
Increase in contract liabilities BHBERRF A YER
as a result of receiving sales 5 & 1R & i & N
deposits during the year 1,924 982
Exchange realignment & (35) =
At 31 December R+=—BA=+-—8 2,263 1,079
25. BOND PAYABLE 25. B4 E 2
The movement of the bond payable is as follows: EfNEHFzEBHMT:
2021 2020
— ZTFHF
HK$000 HK$000
FHETT FET
At beginning of year F4) - =
Issue during the year FREIT 6,000 -
Interest charge for the year REE R B 180 -
At the end of year F i 6,180 -

BHE-_ZE-—F+-A=+—HLE
& NRAEITAE AEE4)6,000,000
BLT(ZE_TF EE) 2B RAE

Ao

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
issued fixed rate corporate bonds with total principal
amount of approximately HK$6,000,000 (2020: nil).

EAESAERT ZETE@FA
6%t B AR T -_—_F+tAAA
EIEf - R B EIBE H S A o

The bonds payables are unsecured and interest bearing at
fixed coupon rates 6% per annum and matured on 5 July
2022. The interest will be paid on maturity date.

PEERRBERARLT —T - —FFR
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R
Number of
Ordinary
Shares of
HK$0.01 each Share capital
BR0.01BTH
ZEREHE &S
HK$’000
FHET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2020, RZE-_ZTF—H—H"
31 December 2020, —E-FF+-_HA=+—H"
1 January 2021 and —E-—F—-—A—8BK
31 December 2021 —E-—4%H+=-_A=+—H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: Eﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂ :
At 1 January 2020 W-E-ZT4—HA—8 385,820,923 3,858
Issue of share under placing WIBREBITRGD (L)
(Note) 77,160,000 772
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-ZEF+=-_HA=+—H
1 January 2021 yrF—E-—F—H—H 462,980,923 4,630
Issue of share under exercise of ~ FE{T{E B IEZ TG
share option 15,432,800 154
At 31 December 2021 R —F+=ZRA=+—H 478,413,723 4,784
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26. SHARE CAPITAL - Continued

Note:

On 12 June 2020, Yuet Sheung International Securities
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing
agreement pursuant to which the placing agent agreed
to place on a best efforts basis, to not less than six
independent places for up to 77,160,000 new share of the
Company at a price of HK$0.07 per placing share. The
placing was completed and 77,160,000 new shares were
issued and allotted on 10 July 2020.

27.RESERVES

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2010
Revision as amended from time to time), the share
premium and capital reserve of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) provided
that immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Capital reserves

In 2009, the Company exercised a capital reduction
by reducing its share capital from HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 250,000,000 shares of HK$4.00 each to
HK$2,500,000 divided into 250,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each (the “Capital Reduction”). The effect
arising from the Capital Reduction was transferred to
the capital reserve account and applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders.

(iii) Goodwill reserves

Goodwill reserve represent the goodwill arising on
acquisition of net asset and operation of another entity
for which the acquisition date is before 1 January 2005.

(iv) Capital redemption reserves

Capital redemption reserve represents the share
repurchases made by the Company.

RESRRE R AR

ECE - —Ff A=+ —HIFE

26. R4 —1&

Hiat:

RZEZZTFAA+=ZB F&RA
RIEEEERELSERART ([H
EREDIT VR EWE Bitt
RRERERZSBHEERES
f8150.078 LA DR NEZ BT
A B ABLE & %77,160,0000% &
NAEF e E B E B A
77,160,000 ¥ IR E R =T =
TFELA+TABITREEE-

27 & 1B

(i)

(i)

IR 1 %= 8
RERSBEERARE(ZT—F
FREFAN BTRER]) AR 7]
BB REARFERAIHBEED
IRSREBRE T ARRRE ([
R HZEEZEDIKIOREE
B ARABENREEXHBREF
SRRE i PAEY X

BEARfFEE

RZZEZTNF ARABHBERK
X 81,000,000,0005% 7T (59 A&
250,000,0008% & §%4.007%8 7T 2
B 19 ) 38 > 22,500,000 7T (5
£250,000,0000% & #%0.017% 7T
Z &) (TRRABIR ) © B2 Hl
BEEZVEEREEANREER
I AT B VE 9 R SR B AR B T AR
%0

(i) BB

(iv)

BERBRERBEHA-ZTTR
F-A—BZARZ—ERFE
ENEBHRBEEZHE -

EXREE#E

BABEFEEREARAMELAR
fREME -
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27.RESERVES — Continued 27. (#E— &

(v) Reserves fund (v)
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises (“FIEs”) established in the PRC
(excluding Hong Kong), a certain portion of the FIE's
profits is required to be transferred to reserve funds
which are not distributable. Transfers to this reserve are
made out of the FIE’s profits after taxation calculated
in accordance with accounting principles and financial
regulations applicable to PRC enterprises (“PRC GAAP")
and shall not be less than 10% of profit after taxation
calculated in accordance with PRC GAAP. No such
transfer was made in either year as there was no such
profit after taxation from the FIEs in either year.

REE
RIBEARETR (TEERE)
AL Z MR EDRE ([ ERE
R ZBBREREBAH - INE
?xé“m%Z%?/mf‘J/,ﬁTﬁé‘iT
DK EREERN -BREFHE
iZi%ﬁﬁffETJﬁiﬁHﬁAﬁle%
SR ERA R ERG ([ E
EEEHENDFEIERED
XzBREEMNFTE THER
RIEFBESREFELFE 2R
1% 35 F 2 10% ° /B F E 15
BREIARELEZHRBRIE G
A E P B R E TR R
B

(vi) Translation reserves (vi) B R R

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations as well as the effective
portion of any foreign exchange differences arising
from hedges of the net investment in these foreign

EXFEEERMARERINER
MBERREELNINEZRUR
BHRZEBIEBREFRE
ERINEZEERHED -

operations.
28. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 28. FFE RS
Share of
net assets of
subsidiaries
21k B BB
REFEE
HK$000
FET
As at 1 January 2020, as at 31 December 2020, RZE-_ZEF—A—H —ZT_FF
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 +—A=+—8-ZZE=-—4%—HF—H
;r=—ZE-—%+=-A=+—H 2,029
The non-controlling shareholder CDC Mobile Medic AN R R — AW B AR IEE KRR
Company (the “CDC") of a subsidiary of the Company, hold % CDC Mobile Medic Company
10% equity interest. Such subsidiary was dormant during (TCDC 1) ¥ B 10% Hx#E - EZW%
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. REBE_T_—FR-_ZF_ZE ¢‘|‘ -
AR=t—HIEFEXEEE-
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HEAE
At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable WR_TE_—F+_A=+—H ET
as follows: EETHEAENT:
2021 2020
—E-— ZE-TF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Within 1 year —FRX 544 776
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMFRA 119 179
663 955
Less: Amount due for settlement with BN REEEETH
12 months shown under current liabilities 1218 A AR Hi&E & 2 318 (544) (776)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months ¥R 3ERE B EE TH
shown under non-current liabilities N2MEABEIBEE 2 5/18 119 179

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied

to lease liabilities at 0.53% (2020: 3.75%).

Lease obligations that is denominated in SDG other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set

HESBERMMINEFIE=ERAF
K 50.53% (ZE=-FF:3.75%) °

NEBSEERYEER NI ZER
BT EZ MEAEEHTIMT

out below:
HK$000
F#ET
As at 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H 603
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H 236
—T-—FFFR 147
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (2013
Share Option Scheme”) on 31 December 2013, which was
approved by the Shareholders at the EGM held on the same
date. The 2013 Share Option Scheme will expire on 31
December 2023.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant share options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth of
the Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible
means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide
benefits to the eligible participants.

According the 2013 Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors may grant share options to eligible participants
as defined in the 2013 Share Option Scheme and the
board of directors has its sole discretion considers eligible
for the 2013 Share Option Scheme on the basis of their
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all share options to be granted under the
2013 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval
and adoption of the 2013 Share Option Scheme provided
that the Company may at any time seek approval from
the Shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares
in issue as at the date of approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Share options
previously granted under any share option schemes of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
in accordance with such schemes or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as
refreshed.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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TE-CZFRREMEEEREARE
MRS ERSEERKBREES
BEHAEEHIERELE R AR
KRB A E AR B BE S E I T E i 5
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ERMHN -

RE-ZF-=-FEREFE EF<g
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AR E M R AR IR LA
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS — 30. UBR B AER RS —

Continued

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the
2013 Share Option Scheme and any of other share option
scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of grant unless such grant has been duly approved by
ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting
at which the relevant eligible participant and his associates
abstained from voting. Share options granted to substantial
Shareholders or Independent Non-executive Directors or
any of their respective associates in any 12-month period
in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital on
the date of grant and with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the Shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 7 days from the
date of the offer upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the board of
directors. There is no general requirement on the minimum
period for which option must be held before an option can
be exercised. All option shares must be exercised within 10
years from the date of grant of options.

The exercise price was determined by the board of directors
and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and the (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

In accordance with the terms of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme, the options granted vested at the date of grant.

RESRRE R AR

]
REERTEBB(2EFEZA)EMI2
EAMARE —T— = FEMRE
2 & AN B B9 £ {A] H A B AR R A B R
FTEREERSHEENERE (BEE
T -EEFHEEMAITEERE)E
TEMBITRAEGEITHRGD BE
T EBEREEECBITRNMI%
HEBEERLERKRRERE (E@AEE
B2HEREBBAEARENG LK
BE)LERENERRAZRIEAE
Bl B o1 o fis BAE AT 1218 A B A A =
ERRIBUIIERTESIFEESE
FRBMEARDNBREBRAR A
REEE BB BITRA01% REE
B 385,000,000/8 7T * BIZE E LS IR
Rt

ERLBEREERIEZAME/ARN
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS - 30. AR R ER Z AKX B
Continued &
During the year, 38,582,000 share options (2020: FAREBE-_ZT-—=FBRETZ
27,007,400 share options) were granted under the 2013 #H38,582,00017 f A% 4 (_5—5_2
Share Option Scheme, the movements of number of share F 27,007,400 B #E) - B E
options under the Share Option Scheme during the years —_—FRZZE_TF+_A :‘f‘ El
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: IEFE - BRESZETEREZESR
ZEBMT
Number of share options
Outstanding at
31 December Outstanding at Exercise Fair value per
Category of Outstanding at 1 Granted during 2020and  Granted during  Exercised during 31 December  Exercisable period of price o option at grant
participant January 2020 theyear 1 January 2021 the year the year 2021 share options share options date
R-2-%%
t=p=t+-Ak
RZ%-%% Z%=-% RZB=-% SHERE
-A-A -A-A tZR=t-8 RELEHH
SaEEH HATR ERRH HALTE EREH ERfik HATE BRETEH BRECEE M
Directos - 174G 11,574,600 - (7,716,400 3858200 15 May 2020 to 14 May 2022 0087 003009
BRL “R-RERATRAR
“Z2-£RA1MA
Employee - 15,432,800 15,432,800 - - 15432800 15 May 202010 14 May 2022 0.087 003071
kR ZECRERATREAZ
“Z2-£RA1MA
Employee - - S 3858000 (7164000 30865600 9 Aprl 2021 to & Aprl 2023 0082 00331
g “E--EMANEE
ZECZEMANR
S A0 27007400 0000 (542800 50156600
The estimated fair values of the options granted on 9 April RZZB_—FOANBRLNBERE
2021 are approximately HK$1,277,000. These fair values B R S ERETH) 21,277,000/ 7T © %
were calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs into ERRERA-EARAGFESLD -
the model were as follows: ZEXNBABLT
Share options
granted on
9 April 2021
R-BZ—-%
mANE
RENBERE
Grant date share price RHBHRE HK$0.0827& 7T
Exercise price T8 HK$0.0827& 7T
Expected volatility TEHERR 18 101.79%
Expected life HHER 2 years 2
Expected dividend yield AR R Y = -
Risk-free interest rate J2, B ¥ 3 0.138%

150

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the past one
year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on the directors’ best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited

BEHRBRBEE —FHARAKRE
MWELRIEEE ZEXRAZEH
FREVREEFHIFTERM 176
REIRITRRE 2R EFH&EMRT
BT ARE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS — 30. UBR B AER RS —

Continued &
The estimated fair values of the options granted on 15 May RZZ_ZEFAATHABREHNER

HEH) 2 Ao (B 15 51 49 53822,00098 7T © 3%
=N EREA B R EH A
ZHEAMEAENT

2020 are approximately HK$822,000. These fair values were
calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

Share options

31.

granted on

15 May 2020

R-B-2F

EA+EH

REfBERE

Grant date share price RABERE HK$0.077%& T
Exercise price 1TE(E HK$0.087 7% T
Expected volatility TE HA R 18 92.62%
Expected life FEETFR 2 years 2
Expected dividend yield TE B AR B e R -
Risk-free interest rate 4 2 B A & 0.342%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the past one
year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on the directors’ best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$1,277,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 in
relation to share options granted by the Company (2020:
HK$822,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Retirement benefits are paid by an overseas and Hong
Kong subsidiary to its employees who contribute to certain
retirement benefits plans managed by relevant independent
trustees/government authorities. The retirement benefits paid
by the overseas and Hong Kong subsidiaries are based on
a certain percentage of its employees’ relevant income in
accordance with the relevant regulations and are charged
to profit or loss as incurred. The subsidiaries discharged
its required contribution obligations upon payment of the
retirement benefits to its designated trustees/government
authorities.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits scheme
contributions totaling approximately HK$1,619,000 (2020:
HK$2,126,000) (note 11). At the end of the reporting period,
there are no forfeited contributions.

RESRRE R AR

31.

BHRBRBEE —FHARAKRE
MESL RIEETE ZEARBZEH
FREVREEFHIFTERME 176
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BT -_—F+-_A=+—HItHF
B AEBB AR B KT A ERER
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T4 822,000 7T ) °

iR K48 A
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32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. E AR IE

2021 2020
—F--Ff —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFHET
Commitment to private equity fund RENLEBRERESZ
investments (“P-Funds”) EIE([FLEES]) - 2,928

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. 8 EfERE

152

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders. In view of the current
cash position of the Group, the directors do not intend to
rely on external financing. Saved as the issue of corporate
bonds in 2021, the Group had no other external borrowings
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from the prior years.

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and maximising the return to stakeholders. The Group’s
capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed by the
directors. The Group is not subject to externally imposed
capital requirements. To maintain or adjust capital structure,
the Group may adjust dividend payment to shareholders
or issue of new shares or repurchase of existing shares as
well as issue of new debt or repurchase of existing debts.
Adjustments will be made to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or
its subsidiaries, and the risk characteristics of the Group's
underlying assets. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior years.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@)

(b)

ECE - —Ff A=+ —HIFE

4. €T A

Categories of financial instruments @ EMIAEER
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZTF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Financial assets cREE
Measured at FVTPL: BERARBFABRE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BAAEFABREZ
TREEE 30,789 67,542
Measured at amortised cost: B A E
Accounts and other receivables JE LT AR R R L th JE IR 68,129 65,730
Loan receivables fEME 8,913 9,608
Cash and bank balances e RiRITHEH 37,160 52,105
114,202 127,443
Financial liabilities o= =
Measured at amortised cost: RHE XA E
Accounts and other payables & {5 BR 3K N HoAth FE < IR 11,031 41,006
Bond payable JE 18 % 6,180 -
17,211 41,006

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
accounts and other receivables, loan receivables, bank
balances, financial assets at FVTPL, accounts and other
payables. Details of the financial instruments for the
Group and bond payable are disclosed in respective
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk). The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner. There has been no
change to the types of the Group’s exposure in respect
of financial instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks.

RESRRE R AR

(b)

MBEREERERBE
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — Continued

(i) Market risk
Currency risk
The Group’s business transaction, assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB and SGD and
the functional currency of the Group is HKS$.
Considering the fact that most of the Group’s
transactions are denominated in its functional
currency except for sales denominated in US$, the
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises
from sales denominated in US$.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Liabilities
=R
2021

(1)

3. ST H—&
(b) fgz%aﬁﬁ"éii:% EREBE-

IIE

5 SR

5] BEE 2 B

AEBEXRBRZ BERE
B AN R K3 g T &t
B MAEEZNEEER
BT EREBRIEETFE
M EN REZHAEER
HUNENEEEE &
B P g 2 SNE R B oK B 32
TTEHEHEE -

RimERR AEBIANE
AAENEBEEREREE
ZHREEMT:

Assets

BE

2020 2021 2020
—EC-F —ZIFT-FTF ZBZ—-F —T-TF
HK$7000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET FHET FET
RMB AR 896 = 33,092 =
SGD s T 2,570 8,082 10,216 40,093
Sensitivity analysis BRE AT

Since HK$ is pegged to US$, there is no significant
exposure expected on US$ transactions and
balances whilst the currency peg remains in place.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued 4RI E-&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HBEBEERERBKX—
policies — Continued &
(i) Market risk — Continued (i) M5 —&

Currency risk — Continued

Sensitivity analysis — Continued

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to a 5% (2020: 5%)
increase and decrease in HK$ against SGD and
RMB: 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management'’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding amounts of Singapore and PRC
subsidiaries” HK$ denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of reporting
period for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates. For a 5% strengthening of HK$ against
SGD and RMB, the post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would be decreased
by approximately HK$270,000 and HK$36,000
respect (2020: HK$598,000 and HK$Nil). For a
5% weakening of the HK$ against SGD and RMB,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit and other comprehensive income.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities with a floating
interest rate as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through

its investments in equity securities and P-Funds
measured at FVTPL. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The Group’s equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on equity instruments quoted
in the Stock Exchange.

RESRRE R AR

ShIE R\ B — 4B

BREST—E&

INTHRESTERBILR
FimETRARKESX F
F R TES% (ZE_ZF:
5%) M E B RIEIEET -
5% BMEEEEEHBRA
B HNE [2 B B R A 2 SRR
LEE - WRREEELHINEG
RSB EE 5T H-
BREDWEBEF NG K
PERBATINBTHES
MIBBZAFRESE KR
R & H Rt OB BE 5% /Y
BEETRERE -MET
HEmExk ARE LR
5% QB E_E-_—F+=
AR=+—BLFENHEE
B R #270,000% 7T &
36,0008 L (ZE &4
598,000 7T R EETT) © iy
BILAFME TREARET
BK5% - Bl & ¥ im F Rk H 2
HARAELERBERARTE-

eSS
RZE-Z—FR-_ZE-FHF
+-—A=+—HB KXEBL
ELREA R EMERNS
MEENBE-

HiERER

AEERLREARERTA
B B2 BAE S KA
BE SR A M E AR A
BER-EEEEATBRA
BETRRRNREMAEE R
I L o 7 4 (8 ) Y AR (4
L% 2 B 5 o 312 B 2 7 3R
BROBRAT A
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — Continued
(i) Market risk — Continued

156

(i1)

Other price risk — Continued

The sensitivity analysis have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date. A 5% increase or decrease is used
as it represents management’s assessment of the
possible change in price of equity securities.

If the prices of the respective equity securities that
are indexed to equity prices had been 5% higher/
lower, the Group's post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2021 would increase/decrease by
HK$1,108,000 (2020: HK$835,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of equity securities held
for trading.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 5% (2020: 5%) higher/lower, the post-tax
loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$177,000
(2020: increase/decrease by HK$1,985,000) as a
result of the changes in P-funds.

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Credit risk refers to the risk that Group’ s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to accounts and other
receivables, loan receivables, and bank balances.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are large banks have low credit risk.

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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S #91,108,0008 70 (=&
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE=-F = —#F+=-H=+—HIFE

3. ST H—&
b) BEEREERERBE—

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — Continued &
(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment — (i) 15 B /& KX 6l (6 7 14 —
Continued &

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer rather than the industry or
country in which the customers operate. The
Group has concentration of credit risk as 20%
(2020: 45%) and 54% (2020: 70%) of the total
accounts receivable was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Internal credit rating  Description

Trade receivables

AEBNEERREIERS
BAEFNEEBRATE:
MESBELEEFTERNITE
KBRATE-AEBTFHE
EHh2EERE  HIHAR
EUWAEESZATF LA
7&@}5%% 19 Bl 42 FE Uk
BRRH20% (B - T4
45% ) R54% (ZE_ZF:
70% ) °

Other financial assets

A EEFR Hit B 5 EWHRE HttERmEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does  Lifetime ECL-not 12m ECL
not have any due amounts credit impaired
el REUFENRRE BYEEMBHTE HRMEEER NEARMEEES
—BEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but settle in  Lifetime ECL-not 12m ECL
full credit impaired
EREE BEHEAZRREBAREER EOERER PHRMEERE NEARHESEAR
-BREERE
Doubtful There have been significant Increase in credit Lifetime ECL-not Lifetime ECL- not
risk since Initial recognition through Information credit impaired credit impaired
development Internally or external resources
5 FENBELIHBRBNENEE ANSRRN 2HENEEER  SHESEEES
REERBCBEEM -BREERE -BREERE
Loss There is evidence indicating that the asset is credit-  Lifetime ECL-credit  Lifetime ECL-credit
impaired impaired impaired
53 BREBRAEECHRERRE SHRMEERE 2HENEEER
—-FERE —FERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery, asset Is credit-impaired
fif 3% BEBRABEARRBENRAE fAKEKRD FADHE REC M
HENFERT BECHBEEERE
Accounts receivables & W R 7R

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

AEBEABEEREL—E
EESRNEPETHERIE

These evaluations focus on the customer’s past Bt -ZETEETRE
history of making payments when due and current FiERERIE S| IS B E R
ability to pay, and take into account information CHENMBRMEREN A
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to ZREFPHBFEEHARE

the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

RESRRE R AR

SEMEBEEEBERRE — R
mME AEBEFTEREFIR
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued

158

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — Continued

(ii) Credit risk and impairment assessment —

Continued

Accounts receivables — Continued

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime
ECL allowance for all accounts receivable. To
measure the ECL accounts receivable have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The following table provides
information about the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and ECLs for accounts receivable as at 31
December 2021 and 2020:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

34. M ITH-—&
w)@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%—

i}

(if) i&f@/&?&ﬂﬁfﬁ#/ﬁ—
JEWERR—&
AEBERE BV BREE
BIZE9SRf 5 AT ETEH
EEEBER B HEHA
ERRERKBZHBEHE
EEEREHB A TEERH
EEER BERARGEER
% 12 K 780 HA K B 4 B KRR
HETOHE TRIBEHAH
KEBRRZZEZ—FEK=F
—ZEF+-_A=+—HEYH
8= & & g e U BR ey 78

HEEBEER:
Expected loss rate Gross carrying amounts Loss allowance

BRERE BREE BERE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
“g--f -EB-%Tf CZ§--f _-T-FF CZF--f "-T-TF
HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000
FET TET FET TET FET TET
Current (not past due) EH(xaH) 2% 1% 11,370 6,439 264 62
1-90 days past due BE1E90H 2% 1% 8,067 3,671 186 22
91-180 days past due BH9I1ZE180R 7% 2% 6,437 6,627 444 109
Over 180 days past due ~ #E11808 LA £ 80% 79% 27,622 40,173 22,015 31,901
53,496 56,910 22,909 32,094

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Loan and interests receivables

The management considers all loan receivables
as doubtful if the repayment of principal and/
or interest has been overdue for more than 3
months. Based on assessment by the management,
approximately HK$695,000 of loss allowance was
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: HK$1,392,000).

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BlZ —F - —F+ - HA=+—HIFEZF

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued 34 @ TEH—-4&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEBEERERBEK—

policies — Continued |

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment — (ii) 15 B /& K 6t (6 7 14 —
Continued =
Loan and interests receivables — Continued JE W B R HB — &
An analysis of changes in the gross amount of loan EWERBERBEEEH DN W
receivables is as follows: Ik

Life time ECL Life time

(not credit  ECL (Credit
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total

2HEH

FEEE 2HEH

1218 A 7 18 (BiEE FEEE
FEER HE) (EEHE) #st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET

At 31 December 2021 R-B=-%
+=A=+-H = 11,000 = 11,000
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZTEF
+ZA=+—H - 11,000 - 11,000
The following tables show reconciliation of loss T&RFRE 5 W E SRR
allowances that has been recognised for loan ZEEREHR:
receivables:
Life time ECL Life time
(not credit  ECL (Credit
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2HES
FEER 2HES
128 A (BEE FEER
FEE#E AE) (FERE) @zt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 R-_Z_ZF-H—H 267 - - 267
Loans/Finance or requoted BEENBENER BE 1,514 - - 1,514
Loans and interests repaid FRERZERRANE
during the year (389) - - (389)
Movements due to changes REERREZ 553N
in Credit risk & (1,392) 1,392 - -
At 31 December 2020 and RZZEZTF
1 January 2021 TZA=1T—-HEk
=5 i - 1,392 - 1,392
Impairment loss for year RERREER - 695 - 695
At 31 December 2021 RZZ2--F
+=ZA=+-H = 2,087 = 2,087
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —FE - —F 1+ - H=+—HIFZF

3. ST H—&
b) BEEAREERERBE -

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Bank balances

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables, the directors
make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of deposits and other receivables
based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The directors believe
that there is no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and the
Group provide impairment based on 12 months
ECL. Based on assessment by the management,

policies — Continued &
(ii) Credit risk and impairment assessment — (ii) /,: E a2 K 6t B AT 1 —
Continued

ﬁﬁﬂ,%ﬁ%
HRAHFHREEFAR
BEERTT MBITHEBRNE
ERBBR-

7R & 8 3 4R 4 {E fe] AT BE
AEBEEREERRDIE
&

e o H Al YRR
IR e N E b EYRIAE
FOEERBBAEGHECR
BEKBNAREGEARTSEMN
AIEMEEREEER &
HEHR & K B Al & WK TR /Y
AU B FT B R RE L o E
R BYIAHERIAR - %
ERENEERRY BEE
B AN EARE1218 A
BHEEBEARRE R
BEEERBMNFME BE-F

approximately HK$ 542,000 was recognised during Z—F+TZRA=t+—HLF

the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$ E TR )ﬁﬂﬁféﬂé #1542,000
38,000). BT (ZT T :38,000
/%TE)
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4. €M T H-E&
b) HBEBREEREREE -
&

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — Continued

(iii) Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the directors, which has
built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate bank
balances and cash and continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows.

The following table analyses the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities
provided internally to the key management
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity
risk. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for financial

(iii) J B & & /7
EEADE TR EEA
EREEE REEAEKHE
ZEH FHEERHES R
MBELERFR DEXL
—EBeEzRBELRARE
BER - NEEERTRR
TRHERRS A RTEE
REALERBRASR AE
BERBESEAR-

TROMAKEREEZERE
ABERBEBRUNER RS E
cREBRzeRABRBALD
BB R BINRIDIEAE
BA R ERMNRZRF A
AAEERAEBEZARRAR
TREMBHR - ERABLZ
A NRBEEERBHE

liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. JE o
Weighted Total
average Within contractual
effective 1yearor  More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand 1 year cash flow amount
ERRER
mEFH R-—FR HeRE
BRA= REER BB-F ko) REE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FAET FAET FAET
As at 31 December 2021 R=ZBZ-f+ZA=t-8H
Accounts and other payables JE 1 B 30 T A BB S FROE = 13,294 = 13,294 13,294
Bond payable R ESR 6% 6,360 s 6,360 6,180
Lease liabilities HEBE 22.73% 549 119 668 663
20,203 119 20,322 20,137
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZZH+-A=+—H
Accounts and other payables FE A BR AR LA B 9 5008 = 42,145 = 42,145 42,145
Lease liabilities HEEE 3.75% 797 184 981 955
42,942 184 43,126 43,100

RESRRE R AR
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued 4RI E-&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEBEERE RBK—
policies — Continued &

(iv) Fair value measurements of financial (iv) @ T A AL EGTE

instruments

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value in the statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial
assets and liabilities into three levels based on
the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of these financial assets
and liabilities.

The level in fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is

NREER
TREJNREBEAREBEFRAR
MBRRRARDAEFE
MEREENMBE REG
ENEEREERABZA
REMERZEZ2H ABIE
ZHEEASEE SERmEE
keaBEsR=ZEFK-

THMEEXREEBEEMER
ANDRESFTE BERS
NREFEABEAREN

significant to the fair value measurement. RIEE F i ABUE -
Level 1 Level 2 Total
F—R FZR @t

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

ZB8--f -ZT-FTF ZCZBI-§f -T-THE CZBZ-F -T-TH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET FET FHET

Financial assets at FVTPL: & AAET AEBR

JERMEE:
- Listed securities held ~BEEEZ LT
for trading EH 26,539 20,005 s = 26,539 20,005
— P-Funds -LEES s = 4,250 47,537 4,250 47,537

REBMARAEFENRR
EHRREHTE

All of the Group’s fair value measurement were
remeasured at the end of the reporting period.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued 4RI E-&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HBEBEERERBKX—
policies — Continued &
(iv) Fair value measurements of financial (iv) 2@ LRI N AEE —

instruments — Continued

Fair value hierarchy — Continued

There were no transfers of financial instruments
between levels in the hierarchy for the both years

ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Fair value at Fair value at
31 December 31 December
Financial assets 2021 2020
R=B=--§ R-ZT_ZT
+=A T=A
=t+—-B2 =+—Bz
TREE NRE DNAE
HK$000 HK$000
FET FAET
Listed equity securities 26,539
in Hong Kong
BEAELTRAES
P-Funds 4,250
LEES

/’f‘/%

AREEH B
BHE_SE-_—Fr-_ZF-F
F+-_HA=+—BIMEAF
E&5EhzcETESsRT
H#Eizo

Fair value Valuation techniques
hierarchy and key input

DRE BERWEK
8 BeEHABE

Level T Quoted bid prices in

an active market

F—H BRBRMGZHRE

Level 2 Net assets value

£ AEFE

There was no change in valuation technique
in respect of P-Funds for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020. There were no transfer
between level and level 2 during the year.

The Group has determined that the reported net
asset value of the P-Funds were approximate to
its fair value at the end of the reporting period
because the investment portfolio for each of the
P-Funds are public traded securities listed on
overseas stock exchanges (i.e. Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and Tokyo Stock Exchange), which
accounted for over 90% of the net assets value for
each of the P-Funds as at 31 December 2021 and
2020.

RESRRE R AR
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B AFE F—KHEE -
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rEBEEEEAEESHND
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z - F - —#F+ _H=+—HIFZF

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 5. METHELE BB ZHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities T?ﬁfﬁﬁ']ﬁglﬁﬂﬁ}ﬁijﬂzizg\
arising from financing activities, including both cash ENES BRRELIFRSE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing %ﬁéé@?iZ%ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁEW&
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future RRETRERAEBGFABRERER
cash flows will be, classified as cash flows from financing THOERARMETDMSREREZE
activities in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash f&e

flows.

Bond payable Lease liabilities

EfES HEAE
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FHEr
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE_ZEF—HA—H - 6,592
Terminator of lease RIEHE = (3,450
Repayment BN - (2,208)
Imputed interest paid ERMEER R - 164
Exchange realignment M 5 & - (143)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RITE-_TF+- EWL* H
r—ZE=-—%—HF—H - 955
Addition nE 6,000 527
Repayment BN - (836)_
Imputed interest paid EREER R 180 20
Exchange realignment M 5 & - (3)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H 6,180 663
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.FEE T X B
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group, AEBTZERABNTFH (BRELE
including directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 12(a) AMBBRENFI2@QMBEENES
to the consolidated financial statements, is as follows: HE) T
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-EHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Salaries and short-term benefits e REBER 2,917 4,032
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37.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set out

37.ARAETEWMBAAFE

ARRARBERRERLRAERFTAL
MEBARFEHIIWT -

below.
Proportion of ownership interest and
Place of voting power held by the Company
incorporation/ Paid up issued/registered ARARZKREZRREELA
Name of subsidiaries registration capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
e, HRERT/
MWEAREE Ef b SMEX =83 GF: EXE S
2021 2020 2021 2020
“B--f ZTITF ZB--F -TC0FF
TTG Global Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% - - Investment holdings
BERERRERAR Bk 10058 & @R REZR
TTG Asia Media Pte. Ltd Singapore 100,000 ordinary - - 100% 100% Provision of advertising
shares of SGD1 each and event organizing
services and magazine
TTG Asia Media Pte. Ltd 1% 100,000/ & 137 1% RHEES REREE
T ERK PR - A R AR A
Netplus Media Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares - - 100% 100% Provision of advertising
agency service
ERERBRAT 0 100/ & @M REEERERS
Sino Impact Group Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - - Investment in securities
US$1 each
Sino Impact Group Limited ~ HBEXEHS REREEIETZ BHERE
AR
EAFEEER ORI) PRC Paid up capital S = 100% ~ Virtual reality business
RiERAF HK$10,000,000
AnmmER ORI) HE 1R 110,000,000 T ERABER
B ERAR
Nation Wealth Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares - - 100% 100% Money lending
Nation Wealth Limited Bk 1REBR HfE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year. The above table lists the subsidiaries of
the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

RESRRE R AR

REEREENB AR BEITEMNES
EHe LRBIEZTRA/YAREE
BRYAEEBNEIEXEZASENE
RE-BEERARREEBHBRARZ
HEREEREAN TR
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38. R A B MBI R KRB
(@ X2 EHBMRR K

38.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of Financial position of the Company

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-EF
HK$000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Non-Current Assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AR ZI’E = 65,675
Equity investments at FVTPL BRAREHABRZ
BARE 2,675 47,537
2,675 113,212
Current Assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE L B B /1 /) SRR 46,650 =
Cash and bank balances Be M7 687 10,000
47,337 10,000
Current Liabilities REAE
Accounts and other payables & A1 BR 3R B H A FE A< IR 4,592 4,644
Bond payable JE - & 5 6,180 =
10,772 4,644
Net Current Assets FEmEBEE 36,565 5,356
Net Assets BEE 39,240 118,568
Capital and Reserves IR A K k8
Share capital & A 4,784 4,630
Reserves & 34,456 113,938
Total Equity EReE 39,240 118,568

Approved and authorized for issued by the board of

directors on 31 March 2022.

RZBE-_—_F=ZA=+—HBHKE

EeHEREETE-

Wang Tao Yang Xingan
s BREZ

Director Director
EF EF

Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE=-F = —#F+=-H=+—HIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY - Continued

(b) Movement in the company reserves

38. le/‘ AR BAR R R R #E -
=]

(b) ARBHEEE

Accumulated

Share Capital losses/
Share option Capital  redemption Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve Profits Total
RitER/
RGEE BRERE EAfiE BEARORE REER @t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-%§-f-H 72,982 - 755 11,690 02,245 147,672
Loss and other comprehensive FRERRAMEERY
expenses for the year = = = = (39,185) (39,185)
Recognition of equity-settled B RA S E IR
share-base payment AR - 822 - - - 822
Issue of shares under lacing REREZTRG 4,629 = = = = 4,629
At 31 December 2020 and RZZZ%%
1 January 2021 +ZR=+-Bk
“Z--5-H-H 77,611 822 755 11,690 23,060 113,938
Issue of share upon exercised RiTERERERTRG
the share option 1,635 (487) - - - 1,148
Recognition of equity-settled BRARAEZ AR
share hond payment REBZHH = 1277 = = S 1277
Loss and other comprehensive FRERRAMEERY
expenses for the year = = = = (81,907) (81,907)
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-%
+ZA=1+-8 79,246 1,612 755 11,690 (58,847) 34,456
FEERRRERBRLT —T—FF®R 167



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LUpLY

RESULTS E |
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+-BHLEFE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--f ZEZTF ZT-NF ZZE-NF ZZT—+F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT VBT
Revenue BEE 63,663 41,150 107,365 94,517 93,121
(Loss)/profit for the year EIEAREE
attributable to: (B8]) /&H:
Owners of the Company ENNIES TSN (22,130) (23,597) (2,665) (28,625) (179,888)
Non-controlling interests FERR R & - - - - -
(22,130) (23,597) (2,665) (28,625) (179,888)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE - BERFERER
INTERESTS
At 31 December
R+t=A=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Bz _"Z_TF _—T-NFE ZET-N\F ZETLF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT BT
Assets BE 154,684 202,950 237,474 223,070 254,861
Liabilities af& (20,137) (46,340) (61,719) (45,263) (42,873)
Non-controlling interests i e (2,029) (2,029) (2,029) (2,029) (2,029)
132,518 154,581 173,726 175,778 209,959
168  Sino Splendid Holdings Limited
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